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Regulation No.1 of 2019
Introduction
' -Sectio"n 62 and Section 86(1) (b) of the Electricity Act, 2003, requrre the

' Commissmn to determine the tariff for supply of electncrty by a Generatrng Entlty to a

D:strlbutlon Llcensee and to regulate electricity purchase and procurement process ‘of

Distribution Llcensees includlng the price at which e[ectnmty shall be procured from
_ the Generatlng Entrties or chensees or from other sources through agreements for

purchase of power for dlStl’IbUthl’l and supply within the State. Sectlon 61 of the Act
_requires the Commlssron to speCIfy the terms and conditions for such determlnatlon of
| tariff. Accordingly, the Commission in exercise of the powers conferred by section

181(2) (zd) read with section 61 of the Electricity Act, 2003 (36 of:2003) thereof and all
. other powers enabii-ng it in this behalf, hereby, makes the following 'Regulation.

{1
G-714/1.



2

TELANGANA GAZETTE EXTRAORDINARY

[Part-1]

1.

Short title,commencement and extent

1.1. These Regulations shall be called the Telangana State Electricity Regulatory

1.2..

1.3
1.4

201
2.2,

Cbmmission. (Terms:and Conditions for Determination of Generation Tariff)
Regulations, 2019;

These Regulations shall come into force with effect from the date of its

publication in the Telangana State Gazette and shall remain in force till amended
or repealed by the Commission: | '
Provided that for all purposes, including the review matters pertaining to the
period till FY 2018-19, the issues related to d_eterh‘lination of Aggregate Revenue
Requirement shall be governed by the provisions of the Andhra Pradesh
Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and conditions for,deterrﬁination of

tariff for supply of electricity by a generating company to a distribution licensee

- and purchase of electricity by distribution licensees) Regulatton -2008, including

amendments thereto, as may be appllcable

These Regulations shall extend to the entire state of Telangana

These Regulations shall be applicable to all existing and future Generating
Entities and their successors, if any for determination of Aggregate Revenue
Req’uirer’nént within the state of Telangana in all matters covered under these
Regulations from 1 April, 2019 to 31 March, 2024.

Defubutuibs and interpretation
In these Regula{ions, unless the context otherwise requires
"ABT Mechanism” means availability based tariff mechanism.
"Accounting Statement(s)” means for each Financial Year, the following
statements, namely:
_2.2.1. balance sheet, prepared in accordance with the forrh contained in fhe
Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to iime, as applicable;
2.2.2. profit and loss account, complying with the requirements contained in
the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time, as applicable,
-cash flow statement prepared in accordance with the applicable
Accounting Standards of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
2.2.3. report of the statutory auditors; -

" 2l cost records prescribed by the Central Government under the

Companies Act, 2013, as applicable together with notes thereto, and



February 1. 2019] TELANGANA GAZETTE b}\.l'RAORDINARY

(9%

i B #
~ time.
2.4.

29,

such other supporting statements and information as the Commission

may direct:

Provided that separate Accounting Statements shall be prepared

and submitted to the Commission for each Licensed Business in

accordance with the License conditions, and for each regulated business:

Provided further that, in case separate Accounﬁng Statements
are not submitted for each Licensed Business in accordance with the
License conditions and for each regulated business for the FY 2018-19
onwards, the petitions filed by the Generating Entity, may be rejected by
the Commiésion after giving the Petitioner a reasonable oppdrtunity of

being heard:

Provided also that the Generating Entlty shall submit the statutory -

auditor's comments, observations and notes to accounts, along with the

Accounting Statements, and a summary of the key issues highlighted by
the statutory auditor and the steps taken to address them:
"Act” means the Electricity Act; 2003 (36 of 2003), as amended from time to

"Aggregate Revenue Requirement (ARR)” means the annual revenue
requirement for each financial year comprising of allowable expenses and return
on capital pertaining to the Generating Entity, for recovery through tariffs and

charges, in accordance with these Regulations; ¥

"Allocation Statement” means for each Financial Year, a statement in respect

of each of the separate businesses of the Generatlng Entity, showing the

amounts of any revenue, cost, asset, liability, reserve or provision etc., which

has been either: .-

2.5.1. determined by apportionment or allocation between different businesses
of the Generafing Entity includihg the Licensed Business, together with a
description of the basis of the apportionment or alloca'tio'n; or

2.5.2. charged from or to each such Other Business together with a description

of the basis of that charge

Provided further that, separate Unit-wise and Station-wise Accounting

Statements for Generation Business shall be prepared and submitted to the

Commission wherever possible.
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2.6. "Applicant” or "Petitioner” means a Generating Entity, who has made an

application for' determination of tariff in accordance with the Act and these

B Regulations and includes a Generating Entity whose tariff is the éubject of a

i

review by the Commission on suo-motu basis or as part of a truing- up exercise.
"Auxiliary Energy Consumption (AUX)” in relation to a beriod, in case of a
Generating Station or Unit, means the quantum of energy consumed by auxiliary
equipment of the Generating Station, such as the equipmént being used for the
purpose of operating plant and machinery, including switchyard of the
Generating Station and the .tran'sformer losses within the Generating Station,
and shall be expressed as a percentage of the sﬁm of gross energy generated at
the generator terminals of all the Units of the Generating Station:

Provided that the -Auxiliary Energy Consumption shall not in_clude the
energy consumed for supply of power to housing colony and other facilities at
the Generating Station and the power consumed for construction works at the

Generating Station;

o 2.8. "Availability” in relation to a Thermal Generating Station/Unit for any period

means the average of the daily average declared capacities as certified by the

State Load Despatch Centre (SLDC) for all the Days during that period,
expressed as a percentage of the Installed- Capacity of the Generating

Station/Unit minus the normative Auxiliary Consumption in Megawatts (MW), as

- specified in these Regulations, and shall be computed in accordance with the

following formula
In relation to.a Thermal Generating Station/Unit
N
Availability = 100 X ¥ DCi / {N' X IC X (1-AUX,)} %
' =1
where, :
N = number of Time Blocks in the given period

DC; = Average Declared Capacity in MW for the i Time Block in such
period :

IC = Installed Capacity of the Generating Station/Unit in MW

AUX, = Normative Auxiliary Consumption in MW, expressed as a -

percentage of gross generation in MW,
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2.9.

2.10.
2l l:

7 combustion - turblne-generators associated waste heat recovery bo:ler‘
2.32.

- 2.13.

2.14,

Capacity Index =

2.15.
2.16.

2.47.

2.18.

“Bank Rate” shall mean the “One-year Marginal Cost of Funds-based Lending
Rate” (MCLR) declared by State Bank of India and in effect on Aprll 1% of the
Financial Year of the date of petition / application.

“Benet"clary or Beneflc:anes” in relation to a Generating Station means the
purchaser of electricity generated at such Station whose tariff is determined
under this Regulation.

“Block” in relation to a combined cycie Thermal Generatlng Station includes

connected steam turbine- generator and auxiliaries;

“Books of Accounts” includes records maintained bv the Generating Statron
in respect of all sum of money recewed and expended all sales and purchases
of goods. and serwces the assets and llabllltles and any other costlrevenue
items or financial transactions; : ‘
“Capltal Cost” means the 'capital cost' of a Project or its Unit or St_age'las the
case rnaybe as determined by the Commission after prudence check in
accordance with clause 7 of this Regulation. |

."‘Capactty Index” in relation to.a Hydro power generating statiOn_s means the

average of the daily. capacity indices over‘oneyear excl1ding those days on

- which Maxirnum Available capacity is Zero due tolnon-,availability of water

Sum of Capacity indices for all the days of the year

| Number of days in the year when the Maximum Available
Capacny is non-zero

"‘CEA” means Central Electricity Authority referred to in Section 70 'of the Act
“CERC” means the Central Electricity Regulatory Commlssmn referred to
Section 76 of the Act; '

“CERC Regulatlons” means the Central Electricity - Regulatory Commlssmn _

' (Terms and Conditions of Tanff) Regulatlons 2014 as amended from time to

tlme
“Change in Law” means occurrence of any of the following events —
2 18.1.enactment, brmgmg into effect or promulgatlon of any new Indlan law
- or o ,
2180, adoptron amendment modlf cation, repeal or re—enactment of any
‘existing Indian law ; or
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' 2.19;
2.20.
_equipment, services and works in which bids are invited by the Project

221,

223

2.24.

2:25,

2. 18.3.ehange in interpretation or application of a'ny‘ Indian law by a competent
- _court, Tribunal or Indian Governmental Instrumentality, which is the
~ final authority under law for such interpretation or application ; or

2.18.4. change of any condition or covenant by any competent statutory

~ authority in relatlon to any consent or clearances or approval or
‘Licence available or obtained for the Project ; or
2.18.5.coming into force or change in any bilateral or multllateral agreement or
treaty between the Government of India and any other Sovereign
Gevernment having impttcatEOne for the Generating Station regulated
under this Regulatron or | | :
2, 18 6.any change in taxes or duties, or mtroductlon of any taxes or duties
- levied by the Central or any State Government
“Commissiori means the Telangana State Electncrty Regulatory C_ommisSion;

“Competitive Bidding” means a transparent process for procurement of

developer through open adve_rtis'em.ent/e-procurement covering the scope and

: speciﬁcatio'ns of the equipment, services and works required for the Project,

the terms and conditions of the proposed contract, the criteria by which the bids
shall be evaluated, -and' shall include domestic as well as international
Competitive Bidding. _ ' '

“Conduct of Busmess Regulatrons” means the Telangana State Electricity

'Regutatory Commrssaon (Conduct of Busmess) Regulatrons 2015, as
‘ _amended from time to time;
2.2,

“Control Period” means the perrod compnsmg flve Years from Apnl 1st 2019

to March 31st, 2024, as the Second control penod and as may be extended by

the Commtssnon

"‘Cut-off Date” means the 31" March of the Year ending after two (2) Years of

the Year of start of commercral operation of a Project and, in case a Project is

_ dectared to be under commercial operation in the last quarter of a Y—ear, it shall

rnean the 31st March of the Yearending after three Years of the Year of start of
such commercial operation. ' | -
“Date of Commerclal Operatlon” (or “COD")shaIi have the meanrng as
asslgned m clause 5 of this Regulatlon

“Day” means the 24 hour penod startmg at 00:00 hour(s)
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225,

227

2.28.

2.29.

2.30.

2.31.

2.32.

gan

2.34.

R

“De-capitalisation” means reduction in gross f_iXed assets of the Project
corresponding to the removal of assefs as admitted by the Commiss-ion;
“Declared Capacity” (or “DC”) in relation to a Genefating Station means, the
capability to deliver ex-bus electricity in MW declared by such Generating
Station in relation to any Time-Block of the Day as defined in the Grid Code or
whole of the Day, duly taking into account the availability of fuel or water, and
subject to further qualification in the relevant Regulation

“Design Energy” means the quantum of energy which can be generated in a
90% Dependable Year with 95% Installed Capacity of the hydro Generating
Station; - - “
“Detailed Project Report” (or “DPR”) means a capital expenditure report with
projected Capital Cost exceeding the limits specified in these Regulations, for
which the Generating Entity is required to obtaih prior En«principlé épproval by
submitting a Detailed Project Report (DPR) in accdrdance with the Guidelines
of the Commission for .in-.principle Clearance of propo'se_d investment schemes; -
“Distribution Licensee” means a Licensee authorised to operate and

“maintain a distribution system for supplying electricity to consumers in its area

of supply.

“End of Control Period ‘Review” means a review to be undertaken in

accordance with the clause 3.13 of this Regulation; ’

“Existing Project” means a Project which has been declared under
commercial operation on a date prior to commencement of the Control Period;
“Expected Revenue from Tariff and Charges” means the revenue estimated
to accrue to the Generating.Entity from the regulated business at the prevailing
level of tariff and charges.

“Extended Life” méans the life of a Generating Station or Unit thereof beyond
the period of Useful Life, as may be approved'b'y the Commission on a case to
case basis | o

“Force Majeure Event” means, with respect to any party, ahy event or
circumstance, or combination of events or circumstances, which is not within
the reasonable control of, and is".r)ot due to an act of omission or commission of
thaf_ party and which, by the exercise of reasonable care and diligence, could
not have been prevented ; and, without Iimitihg the generality of the foregoing,
shall include the following events or circumstances \—
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2.35.1.acts df God, including but not limited té Iightning, storm, action of the
elements, earthquakes, flood, torrential rains, drought and natural
disaster; '

0.35.2.acts of war, invasion, armed conflict or act of foreign ehemy,
inéurrectioris, riots, revolution, terrorist or military action ;

2.35.3.unavoidable aécident, including but not limited to fire, explosion,
radioactive contamination and toxic chemical contamination ;

2.35.4.any shutdown or interruption of the grid, which is required or directed
by the concerned Load Despatch Centre

2.36. “Generation Business” means the business of production of electricity from a
Generating Station for the purpose of: _ |

2.36.1. giving supply to any premises or enabling supply to be so given, or

2.36.2. supply of electricity to any Distribution Licensee in accordance with
the Act and the rules and RegUlaﬁons made there under, or |

2.36 3. subject to the Regulation made under sub-section (2) of Section 42 of
the Act, supply of electricity to any consumer )

2.37. “Generating Entlty” means any company or body corporate or assocnatlon or
body of individuals, whether mcorporated or not, or artificial juridical person
Wthh owns or operates or maintains a Generatlng Station.

2.38. “Generating Station(s)” (or “Station(s)”) means a Station for generatang
electricity, including any building and plant with step-up transformer,
switchgear, switch yard, cables or other appurtenant equipment used for that
purpose and the site thereof ; a site intended to be used for a Generating
Station, and any building used for housing the operating staff of a Generating
Station, ,

Further provided that where electricity is generated by waterpower,
includes penstocks, head and tail works, main and regulating reservoirs, dams
and other hydraulic works, but doés not include any sub-station.

2.39. “Generating Unit(s) or Unit(s)” in relation to a Thermal Generating Station

| (other than combined cycle Thermal Generating Station) means steam
generator, turbine-generator and auxiliari_es,. or in relation to a combined cycle
Thermal Generating Station, means turbine generator and auxiliaries; in
relation to a hydro generating station means turbine generator and its

auxiliaries;
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2.40.

2l

2.42.

243.

. 2.44,

248,

2.46.

241

2.48,
. 249

250,
2.91.

G-714/2.

“Grid” means the high voltage backbone system of inter-connected
transmission lines, sub-stations and Generating Stations; | '
“Grid Code” means the Indian Electrioity Grid Code specified by the Central
Commission or the Telangana State Ele_ctricity Regulatory Commission.(State
Grid Code) Regulations whichever is applicable as amended from time _io time
or subsequent re-enactment thereof, _ . |
“Gross Calorific Value” (or “GCV?”) in relation to ‘a Thermal Generating
Station means the heat prodnced in kilocalories (kcal) by complete combustion
of one kilogram (kg) of solid fuel or one litre of liquid fuel or one standard cubic
meter of gaseous fuel, as the case may be. | |

“Gross Station Heat Rate” (or “GSHR”) means the heat energy input in kcal
required to generate one kilo Watt hour (kWh) of eleetrical energy at generator
terminals of a Thermal Generating Station. R

“Impleme'ntation | Agreement” means the agreement, ‘c':ontract or
memorandum of understandlng, or any such covenant entered into between
the Generating Station and transmission licensee for the execution of
associated transmission system in coordinated manner. .
“Infirm Power” means electricity injected into the Grid prior to _tﬁe COD of a

Unit or Block of the Generatmg Station;

"‘!nstalled Capacity” (or “IC”) means the summatlon of the name plate

capacities of all the Units of the Generating Station or the capacuty of the
Generating Station (reckoned at the generator term:nals) as may be approved
by the Commission from time to time; '

“Kilowatt-Hour” (or “kWh”) means a unit of elecmca[ energy, measured in
one (01) kilowatt or one thousand watts (1,000) of .power produced or

consumed over a period of one (01) hour;.

‘“License” means iicenSe granted under section 14 of the Act;

“Licensed Business” means the functions and activities, which are required
to be undertaken by the Licensee, in terms of the License granted under the
Act, o

“Licensee” means a person who has been granted a License.

"Maximum Continuous Rating” (or “MCR”} in relation to a 'Ge'nerati'ng. Unit
of the Thermal Generating Station means the maximum continueus output at -

the generator terminals, guaranteed‘ by the manufacturer at rated parameters,
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2.52.

- 2.53.
2.54.

~ 2.55.

~ 2.56.

2.57.

2.58.
2.509.

2.60.

and in relatron to a Block of a combined cycle Thermal Generating Station
means the maximum continuous output at the generator terminals, guaranteed

by the manufacturer with water or steam injection (if appllcable) and corrected

to 50 Hz Grid frequency and under specified site conditions;

“Mrd-term Revrew” means a review to be undertaken in accordance with the -

clause 3.12 of thls Regulat:on

“New Generatmg Unit/Station” means a generatlng unltfstatron declared
under commercial operation on or after the date of coming into force of these
Regulatfons | = ' '
“Ninety (90) % Dependable Year” shali mean the Year in WhECh the annual
energy generation has the probabll:ty of belng equal to or in excess of 90% of

‘the expected penod of operatton of the Station. ;
“Non-DPR Scheme” means a capital expendrture scheme with pro;ected'
Capltal Cost within the l|m|ts specn" ed in these Regulatlons for which the
| Generatrng Entlty is not requrred to obtaln prior in pnncnple approval of the
"Commlsswn _ S
“Non-Tarrff Income” means the mcome relatlng to the regulated busrness‘
~other than from tariff, excludmg any mcome from Other Business.

“Normative Annual Plant Avallabnllty Factor” (or “NAPAF"), in relation to a

Generating Stat:on means the avarlablllty factor as specified in clause 17.3 and |

18.3 of these Regulatlons for Thermal Generatrng Statlon and hydro
Generating Station respectlvely ' '

“Officer” means an officer of the Commi_ssion. _‘ _

"Operation'an_d Maintenance expense” (or “O&M expense”) in respect of a
Generating Entity ‘means- the expenditure incurred on operation and
malntenance of the Generatlng Station or Unit of a Generatmg Entlty, or part

thereof, and includes the expenditure on manpower, reparrs, spares,
consumables insurance and overheads but excludes fuel expenses and water

charges and shall be as determmed in clause 19 of this Regulatlon .
“Original Pro;ect Cost” means the capital expendrture mcurred by a
Generatlng Entity within the onglnal scope of the: Prolect up to the Cut Off Date

as admltted by the Ccmn’ussron

B
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2.61.

2.62.
2.63.

2.64.

- 2.65.

“Ongmal Scope of Work” means the activities to be performed under a
contract or sub-contract in the completion of Project or scheme as approved by
the Commission; | : |

“Other Business” means any business undertaken by the Generatlng Entlty,
other than generation of electricity; ‘

“Pit head” refers to the top of a mining pit or coal shaft that is immediately
adjacent to the Generating Station

“Plant Availability Factor” (or “PAF”) ,in relation to a Génerating Station for

any period means the average of the daily Declared Capacities (DCs) for all the

Days during the pertod expressed as a percentage of the Installed Capac:ty in
MW less the normative Auxiliary Energy Consumption.
“Plant Load Factor” (or “PLF”), in relation to a Thermal Generating Station
for a given period, means the total sent-out energy corresponding to actual
generation during such period, expressed as a percentage of sent-out energy
correspc_jnding to Vlnsta[led Capacity in that period, and shall be computed in
accordance with the following formula :— _ |
2.65.1. In relation to a to a Thermal Genérating Station/Unit
N s
PLF =100 X ¥ SGi/{N X IC X (1-AUXn)} %
. 1 ;
where, |
N ='number of Time Blocks in the given period,
SGi= Sch’edu-led Generation in MW for the i Time Block of the
penod | '
IC = Installed Capacity of the Generating StationIUmt in MW;
AUXn = Normative Auxiliary Consumptlon in MW, expressed as a
percentage of gross generation in MW; ‘

N | |

> = Summation fromi = 1.to N; |

i=1

2.66."Primary Energy™in relation to a hydro power generating station

means the quantum of energy generated up to the design energy on
per year basis at the generating station;
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- 2.67.

" 2.69.
92.70:
2.71.

272,

2.73.

2.74.

- 2T
~ schedule of generation in MW or MWh ex-bus g:ven by the concerned Load

296,

“Prmect” means a Generatlng Sratlon

Provided that in case of a hydro Generatmg Station mcludes all

. components of generatmg facility such as dam, intake water conductor system,

pom}er Generating Station and generating-units of the scheme, as apportioned

to power generation |

Furiher provrded thatin case of Thermal Genera’{mg Stahons it does’ not
~include mming if it is a Pit Head Project and dedicated captive coal mine.

2.68.

“Prudence Check” means the scrutiny. of reasonableness of expendrture
incurred or proposed to be incurred, ﬂnencmg plan, use of efficient technology,

cost and time overrun and such other factors" as may be considered

appropriate oy the Commlssron for determrnatlon of Aggregate Revenue

Requirement and tariff.

“Pumped Storage Hydro Generatmg Statron” means a hydro sv‘:atlon whroh

-generates power through energy storeci m the form of water energy, pumped

from a lower elevation reservoir foa hlgher e!evetlon reservoir,
“Reform Act” means the Andhra Pradesh E!ectncrty Reform Act, 1998

“Run-of-rlver Generatrng Statlon” means a hydro Genera‘ung Statron whrch*

does not have upstream pondage. .
“Run-of-nver Generatmg Station with pondage” means-a hydro Generatmg
Station with sufficient - pondage for: meetmg the dlumai variation of power
demand. ' | ;

“Schedu]ed Commercral Operatron Date or SCOD” shall mean the date(s)

of commercial operehon of a Generating. Statlon .or Generating Unit or Block

~ thereof as indicated in the Investment approval or as agreed in power purohase

agreement whichever is- eariler _ s
“Schedu!edenergy” means the quantum.of energy scheduled by the
concerned load despatoh center to be- mjected m’ro the grid by a generatmg
station for a given time period. ' ”

“Scheduied _generatiori’ at any time or r for a time block or any period means

Dispatch Centre; o ,
"Secondary Energy"in relation to a hydro power generating station

means the quantum of -energy generated_in excess of the design

| energy on per year basis at the generating station;

[Part-1i
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277

2.78.

« 92799
9.80.
TOET.

082,

2.83.

2.84.

2.85.

12.86.

“Small Gas Turblne Generating Station” means and mcludes open cycle gas
turbine or combined cycle Generating Stations W|th gas turbines in the capacrty
range of 50 MW or below. ' '

“Start Date or Zero Date" means the date indicated in the investment

approvat for commencement of implernentation of the F‘roject,and where no

'_date_:has;been' indicated, the date of investment approval .sha-ill,b_e deemed fo

be the Start Date or Zero Date.

, “State” means the state of Teiangana
“State Grld Code” means the Code specified by the Ccmmzssmn under clause

(h) of sub-section (1) of section 86 of the Act; .

“Storage-type Power Statlon” means a hydro power Generatmg Statlon

'_aesomated with Iarge storage capac:ty to enable vanatlon in generatlon of

eIectnc&ty accordmg to demand

“Straight Line Method” means the method where depremahon resutts ina - |

-constant charge over the Useful Life tf the assets resrdual vaiue does not -

change.

'“Tlme-Block” means a t:me block of t" fteen (15) mlnutes or any such shorter
~duration as may be notifi ed by CERC and Commnssmn for Wthh specmed

electrical parameters and quantitles are recorded by spemal energy meter with

first time block starting at 00.00 hours or such other penod as the Commnssron :

may stlpulate _ _ _
“Terminal  Liabilities” means  terminal - benefits  such as

'Death-cum-Retirement Gratuity, Peneion, Commuted Pension,"l.:eave

Encashment, LTC, Dearness relief, Interim relief, Medical reimbursement
mcludlng fixed medical allowance in respect of pensmners '
“Therma[ Generating Stat|on” means a Generatmg Station or a Umt thereof

that generates eiectrlcny usmg fossil fuels as its primary source of energy.

“Tnal Run or Trial Operat:on” means the successful running of the,

Generating Station or Unit thereof at MCR or Installed Capacity for continuous

period of 72 hours in case of Unit of a Thermal Generating S'tation or Unit

thereof and 3 hours in case of a Unit of a hydro Generating'Statiojn or Unit '

thereof;
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2.87.

2.88.

2.89,
2.90.

h Prov:ded that:

2.86. 1 The short :nterruptlons for a cumutatave duration of 4 hours shalt be
perm:ssuble with a correspondmg increase in the duratlon of the test

Cumulatwe lnterruptlons for more than 4 hours shall call for repeat of -

Trial Operation or Trial Run.

2.86.2. Partial Ibading may be allowed withbthe conditio'n. that average load -
~ during the duration of the Trial Run shall not be less than Maximum

Continuous Rating or the Installed Capacity orthe Name Plate Rating .

-excluding period of interruption and partial loading but _inctuding the -

- corresponding extended period.

2.86.3. Units of thermal and hydro Central Generating Stations and
| inter-State Generating Stations shall also demonstrate capability to

- _raise load up to 105% or 110% of this Maximum Continuous Rat:ng or
Installed Capacuty or the Name Plate Ratmg as the case may be.
“Untt” in relation to a Thermal Generating Station (other than combined cycte

Thermal Generatmg Statlon) means steam generator turbme—generator and
auxlilanes or, in relation to a combmed cycle Then-nal Generating -Station,

means turb;ne-generator and auxillanes and in relation to a hydro Generatmg
Statron means turbme- generator and its auxiliaries.

' "Useful life” means in relation toa Unitofa Generatmg Statlon from the date

of commercnal operation shall mean the followmg, namely:-
(i) Coallt,lgnlte. base_d thermal generating Station: 25 years; -
'(ii) fGasiLiquid fuet based thermal Generating' Station: 25 years; (iii)
Hydel Generatlng Station including Pumped Storage Hydel Generatmg
: Statlon 40 years _ : s
Provided further that the extension of hfe of the progects beyond the completion
of thelr useful life shall be decuded by the Commission. '
"Year” or "Fmanmal Year (FY)” means a financial \ year :
Words and expressuons used and not defined in the Regulation but defined i m

the Act and Reform Act shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Actor

Reform Act. Expressions used herein but not specifically defined in the

R'egulatien or in the Act but defined under any law passed by a competent

legislature and apptiéabl_e_to the electricity industry in the State shall have the

' meaning assigned to them in such law. Subject to the above, expressions used
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herern but not specrf ically defi ned in this Regulation or in the Act or any law

., passed by a. competent legislature shall have the meaning as is generally B

-assigned in the electricity industry.
In the rnterpretatlon of this Regulation, uniess the context otherwise requres

(i) words in the smgular or ptura! term, as the case may be, shali also be

deemed to include the plurat or the singular term respectlvely,

(i1) references herein to the ‘Regulatlon shall be construed as a reference to
th:s Regulation as amended or modifi ed by the Comm:ssron from time to
time in accordance with, the applicable laws in force; '

(111)the headrngs are inserted for convenience ‘and may not be taken into
account for the purpose of rnterpretatron of this Regulation;

(1v) reference to the statutes, Regulatrons or gurdehnes shall be construed as

includrng alt provrsrons consolrdatmg, amendrng or replacing such statutes
' Regu!ations or gurdelmes, asthe case may be, refen_'ed to;

Appltcabllity and General Prtnciples

~ 3.1. This Regulatron shall apply in all cases where tanﬁ for a Generatmg Statlon ora |

Umt thereof is requrred to be determrned by the Commrssron under sectron 62 of

~ the Act. |
Provrded that Provrsrons of these Regulatlons shall not be apphcable for the ;
_ Determmatron of Tanff for the Generation of Etectncrty from Renewable Energy_ )
: Sources ' ' '

'3, The Commsssron shall be gurded by the Regu!atlons contained heretn for

determming the tariff for supply of electncrty by a Generatmg Entlty fo a
Distribution Llcensee in the following cases ‘

'_t3 2.1. where such tariff is pursuant to a power ‘purchase - agreement or‘

arrangement entered into - subsequent to the date of effectrveness of
these Regulatrons or _— ‘ '
3.2.2. where. such tariff is pursuant to a power purchase agreement or

arrangement entered into prior to the date of effectrveness of this

Regulation and either the.VCommtsszon has not prewously approved such

- agreement / arrangement or the agreement/ arrangement envisages that
the tariff shall be based on the this TSERC Generation Tariff Regulations, -

- 2019;
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3:3. Thls Regulatlon shall not apply for determrnatron of tariff in case of the followmg

3. 3 1. Generating Statrons whose tariff has been dlscovered through tar:ff’

based Competltrve Bidding in accordance with the guldehnes issued by

the Central Government and adopted by the Commission under Section

.63 of the Act

_ [Part-1l

3.4. ThlS Regulatlon shaII be apphcab!e to aH ex:stmg and future Generatmg Entities -

35 These Regulations supersede the “APERC Terms and Condrtrons for

and their successors, if any.

Determinatron of Tariff for Supply of EIectncuty by a Generatmg company to a

Distribution Licensee and Purchase of Electru:ity by Distribution chensees _

Regulation 1 of 2008".

Multi-Year: Tanff Framework

3 6. The Commission shall determlne the tanff for supp!y of electrrcrty by a.

3.7.

Generatmg Entity, except from renewable. sources of energy to a Distribution
Llcensee under a multi-year tariff framework W|th effect from April 1, 2019.

_ Provzded that where the Commlssron beheves that a shortage of supp!y "
of electricny exrsts it may fi iX the mtmmum and maxrmum ceiling of tariff for sale
- or purchase of electncnty in pursuance ofan agreement, entered into between a _

'_Generatrng Entity and a Dlstrlbutron Llcensee or between Drstrlbutlon

eleotnclty

"shall adopt the tariff if such tanff has been determlned through a transparent
process of b[ddlng in accordance wrth the guidelines rssued by the Central :

Government pursuant to Sectron 63 of the Act
The Multl-Year Tariff framework shall be based on the foltowmg elements, for

“determination of Aggregate Revenue Requrrement’ and Expected Revenue from'

Tariff and Charges for Generatlng Entrty

Notwrthstandmg anythrng contamed in this Regulat:on the Commrssron :

- Llcensees for a per[od not exceedlng one year to ensure reasonable pnces of - -~

3. 7 1. The Applrcant shall submlt a detalled Multi-Year Tanff application

comprlsmg the followrng for each year of the Control Period:

(a) the forecast of Aggregate Revenue Requrrement for the entlre -
Control Period

(b) expected revenue from exrstlng tarlffs ‘

(c) proposed tariff
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(d) revenue gap
Provided that the performance parameters, Whose tra;ectones

have been specified in this Regu!atron, shall form the basis for projection

- of these performance parameters in the Aggregate -Revenue

BT 2

Requirement for the entire Control Period;

Determination of Aggregate Revenue Reqwrement and tariff for the

Generating Entity for each Financial Year within the Control Perrod by the

S8,

Commission atthe start of the Contro! Penod

Petition for Mld-term Review of operatronal and financial performance
vis-a-vis the approved forecast for the first two years_ of the Control
Period; and revised "forecast of Aggregate _Revenue Requirement,

expected revenue from existing tariff', expected revenue gap, for the

' third fourth and fifth year of the Control Period, shall be submitted by the

37 A4,

Generating Entity; ‘

True-up for the first year and second year of the Control Period based on

audited accounts and provrsronal true-up for the third year ‘of the Control
Period of operational and fi nancial performance vis- a-vxs the approved_

~ forecast for the respectlve Years shall be submitted by the Generating

3.7.5:

Entity along with its Petition for Mid-term Rev1ew

Determination of the revised Aggregate Revenue Requirement and 'tariff'

for Generating Entity by the Commission for the fourth and fifth year of the

Control-Period based on the Mid-term Review;

3.7.6.True-up for the first year and second year of the Control Period,

provisional true-up for the third year of the Control Period of operational

~and financial performance vis-a-vis the approved forecast for the

377

3.7.8.

G-714/3.

respective years, and categorisation of variation in performance as those
caused by factors within the .cont.rol of the Petitioner (contro!!able factors)
and by factors beyond its control (uncontrollable factors) by the
Commission, along with the Midterm Review

The mechanism for pass-through of approved gains or Iosses on account
of uncontro!lable factors as specn‘red by the Commission in this
Regulation; ‘ _ 5
The rne'chanism for eharing of 'aporoved gains or losses on account of

controllable factors as specified by the Commission in thi'e Regulation;
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3.8. Petitions to be frlecuurmg theSecond Control Period-
 The Petitions to be flIed m the Second Control Period under these Regulatlons
'~ are as under:-- ' . | |
3.8.1. Multi-Year Tanff Petut:on rshall be filed by Apnl 1 2019 compnsmg
(a) Truing-up for FY 20,714 -18 to be camed out under the Andhra Pradesh
Regulation 1 of 2008 - Terms and Cobd_itions_ for Dete,r'rnination of Tariff
for Supply of Electricity by a Generating 'Entityto a Distribution Lteensee

and Purchase of Electricity by Distribution Llcensees or CERC_

Regutatrons as relevant ‘ : ‘
(b) _'Prows:onaf Trumg -up and trumg up for FY 2018-19 to be camed out
- under_theAndhra Pradesh Regulation 1 of 200_8_ Terms and Conditions
for Determination of Tariff for Supply of Electricity by a Gen'erat'ing' Entity
_to a Distribution Llcensee and Purchase of Electncrty By Dlstrlbutlon

= ,chensees or CERC Regulatlons as relevant

Prowded that the Commrssron may, if it consrders approprlate
carry out the trumg-up for the year FY 2018 19, along W|th the trumg up
for the first two years of the Control Penod FY 2019-24 dunng the

L 'Mld-Term Rev;ew _
‘(c‘) Aggregate Revenue Requwement for each year of the Control Penod
'. ' under this Reguiatrons _
(d) Revenue from the sale of power at exlstlng tariffs and prOJected revenue
~ gap for each year of the Control Perlod under this Regulat;on
3.8.2. Mid-term Review Petition

'(a} Trumg up for the first and second year and prowsu)nai truing-up for third -

year of the Control Period to be carried out under these Regulations.
(b) Revised forecast of Aggregate Revenue Reqmrement expected

revenue from exlstmg tanff and charges and revenue gap for the fourth |

: R and fifth year of the Control Period.
Prowded that a petition may be filed- at any trme dunng the
Control Perlod in case of variation in uncontrollable factors that may result

in sudden, steep, and sustamed increase rn tarift.

.3 9 ~The Petltroner shall submit separate audited Accountlng Statements atong Wlth.

the petition for determinatron of tariff and trumg up un_der these Regul_atlons.

[Part-I11
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3.10.Multi-Year Tariff Petition

3.10.1.

3.:10.2.

3:10.3.

3.10.4.

3.10.9.

3106

3107

The Multi-Year Tariff Petition snau include a forecast of Aggregate
Revenue Requirement and expected revenue from tariff for each Year of
the Control Period in the- manner specified in these Regulations, and
shall be accompanied by applicable fees. ' |

The forecast of Aggregate Revenue Requirement may be based on
“assumptions relatlng to the behavior of individual variables during the
Control -P.eriod, including capital investment plan, financing plan and
physical targets in accordance with.gu.ide!ines‘ and formats as may be
prescribed by the Commission. ‘

The capital investment plan shall show, separately, on-going Projects

that will spill over into the Control Period, and new Projects that -will

commence in the Control Period but may be completed within or beyond .

it, for which relevant technical and commercial details shall be prbvided.

The forecast of Expected Revenue from Tariff and Charges shall be

based on the following: _ =~ -

(a) Estlmates of quantum of e[ectncrty to be generated by each
Unit/Station for each year of the Control Period. ‘

(b) Prevailing tariff as on the date of filing of the petition/ application or
_estirnated tariff for the new generating unitlstation :

Based on the forecast of Aggregate Revenue Requirement and

expected revenue from tariff th_e Generating Entity shall submit the
proposed tariff (Unit and Station—w'ise) for each year of the Control
Period, that would meet the gap, if any, in the Aggregate Revenue
Requirement, 1nclud|ng unrecovered revenue gaps of previous years to
“the extent proposed to be recovered. -

Full details supporting the forecast sha]l be provided, mc!udlng but not
limited to details of past performance, proposed initiatives for achieving
efficiency or productivity gains, technical studies, contractual
arrangements and secondary research, to-enable the Commission to
assess the reasonableness of the forecast

On receipt of the petition, the Commission shall erther issue an Order

approving the Aggregate Revenue Requrrement and tariff. for the Control
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Period, subject to such mbdiﬁc_étions and conditions as it méy stipulate;
or reject the petition for reasons to be recorded in writing, after giving the

Petitioner a reasonable opportunity of being heard.

'3.11. Specific trajectory for certain variableshe Commission, while approving

3.10.

the Multi-Year Tariff Petition, may stipulate a trajectory variables.
Mid-term Review ' o |

3.12.1.The Generating Entity shall file a petition for Mid-term Review and ~

truing-up of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Revenue for FY
2019-20-and FY 2020-21, and provisional truing-up for the FY 2021-22,
by November 30, 2021: . ‘

| _ ‘ Provided that the Petition shall include information in such
forrh,as may be stipulatéd by the Commission, together with the
ACCOuntih_g Statements, extracts of Books of Account and such other
details, i_‘hcludi-ng cost accdunting reports or extracts thereof, as it may
'req‘uir‘e to assess the reasons for and extent of any difference in
operational and financial performance from the approved forecast of

Aggregate Revenue Requirement and expected revenue from tariff.

3.12.2.The scope of the Mid-term Performance Review shall be a comparison

of the actual operational and financial performance vis-a-vis the
appm\r/ed’ forecast for the first three years of the Control Period; and
revised forecast of Aggregate Revenue Requirement, expédted
revenue from existing Tariff, expected revenue gap, for the fourth and
fifth year of the Control Period. '

3.12.3.Upon comp'letion of the review under clause 3.12.2 herein, the

Commission shall attribute any variations or expected variations in

“performance, for variables specified under clause 6.7 & clause 6.8, to
factors within the control of the Petitioner (controllable factors) or to

factors beyond its control (uncontrollable factors).

3.12.4.Any variations or expected variations in performance, for variables

other than those speéiﬂed under clause 6.7 of this Regulation, shall not
~ordinarily be reviewed by the Commission during the Contro‘l Period

and shall be attributed entirely to controllable fact'ors:r

3.12.5.Where the Petitioner believes, for any variable not specified under

clause 6.7, that there is a material variation or exp'ected'variatibn in
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performance for any Year on account of uncontrollable factors, it may

apply to the Commission for inclusion of such variable.

3.12.6.Upon completion of the Mid-term Review, the Commission shall pass

an order recording:—

(@)

()

the approved aggregate gain or loss to the Generating Ehtity on
account of controllable factors' for the first two Years of the Control
Périod and provisional Truing-up for the third year of the Control
Perio‘d and the amount of' such gains or such losses that may be

shared in accordanoe with clause 6.10 of this Regulation.

‘The approved aggregate gain or Icss to the Generatlng Entity

accou_nt of uncontrollable factors for the first two years of the Control

Period and provisional Truing-up for the third year of the Control

Period, and the amount of '_such gains or such losses that were not -

i'ecovered during the respective years and which may be shared in

accordance with clause 6.9 of this F«_’\_egulatidn'.
The approved modifi catlons to the Aggregate Revenue

- Requirement and Tanffs for the remainder of the Control Penod
3.13. End of the Control Period Review '
~ 3.13.1.The Generating Entity shall file a pehtlon for End of the Control Penod

Review and truing-up of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and

revenue for FY 2021-22 and FY 2022- 23 and prov:swnai truing- up for.

the FY 2023-24, by November 30, 2023.

~ Provided that the Petition shall ihclhde information in such

form as may be stipulated by the Commission, together with the

' Accounting Statements, ex’tracis of Books of Account and such other

details, including cost accounting reports or extracts thereof, as it may

require to assess the reasons for and extent of any difference in

operational and financial performance from thé approved forecast of

Aggregate Revenue Requirement and expected revenue from tariff.

3.13.2.The scope of the End of Control Period Review shall be a comparison

of the actual operational and financial performance vis-a-vis the

approVed forecast for the third, fourth and fifth Year(s) of the Control

Penod

3.13.3. Upon completlon of the review under clause 3.13.2 of this Regulatlon
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the Commission shall attribute any variations or expected variations in -

‘performance, for variables specified under clause 6.7 & clause 6.8 of

“this Regulation, to factors within the control of the Petiiioner

(controllable factors) or to factors beyond its control (uncontrollable _

factors)

3.13.4.Any variations or expected variations in performance for variables

other than those specified unde_r clause 6.7 of this Regulation, shall not
ord-inariiy' 'be reviewed by {he Commission during the Control Period

and shall be attrlbuted entirely to controllable factors

3.13.5.Where ‘the Petitioner believes, for any varlable not speczﬂed under

clause 6.?,.that_ there is a material variation or expected variation in
performance for any Year on account of uneontrollab!e.fectors,‘ it fnay
apply to the Commission for inclusion of such vanable *_

e 13 [ Upon completlon of the End of Control Period Rev1ew the Comrnnsston
shall pass an order recording :—

(a) the é‘p‘proved aggregate gain or loss to the Generating Entityen_

account of controllable factors for the third and fourth year of Control

Period a'ri_'d' provisional Truing-:Up. for the fifth year of the Control

" Period, and the amount of such gains or‘such losses that may be
shared in accordance with clause 6.10 of this Regulation.

(b) the approved aggregate gain or loss to the Generating Entity account
of uncontrollable factors for the third and fourth Year of the Control -

Period and provisional Truing-up for the fifth year of the Control
Period, and the amount of euch gains or such losses that were not
recovered during the fe‘spective years and Which may be sharéd in
' accordance with clause 6.9 of this Regulation. - |

3 13 7.Also, the Comm:ss;on shall review the achlevement of objectives and

implementation of the prmcrples of MYT Ia|d down in these'

Regulations.

3.13.8.To meet the objectlves of the Act, the Natlonal Electnclty Pollcy and
- Tariff Pohcy, the Commnssnon may revise the pnncnples of MYT for the |

subsequent Control Period(s).

3 13.9.The end of a Control Period shall be the begmnmg of the subsequent:

Control Penod The Appllcant shall follow the same procedure for the
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4.

4.2;

3.13.10.The Commission shall analyse the performance with respect to _the_'

‘ne'xt Control Period unless Eequired otherwise by the Commission..

norms set out at the begihhing of the Control Period'in the MYT order
and sha!l determine the base values for the next Control Perlod based

on actual performance achieved, expected lmprovement and other

relevant factors.

'Procedure for determlnatlon' of tariff

4.1.1.

4.1.2.

4. 113

.1. Filing of Petition fodetermination) of Tanff
Petltlon for determtnatlon of tariff shall be flted in such form and in such

~manner as. specn‘led in this Regu]ation and be accompamed by

applicable fees.

The prooeedmgs for determlnatlon of Tariff shall be undertaken by the '

Comm:sswn in accordance w:th the Reguiatlons governing its Conduct

- of Business. . , : ;
Not\wthstandmg anythmg contalned in this Reguiatlon the Comm:ss:on
- shall have the authonty to determine the tanff gither suo-motuorona

Petition fi led by the Generatmg Entity as per TSERC terms and
condltlons of generation tariff regutatlon ‘

Petition for determination of tariff

4.2:1:

4.2.2.

Tariff in respect of a Generating Station under this Regulations may be
a determined Stage-wise, Unit-wise or for the whole Generating Station.
Provided that the terms and COI"IdlUOI‘lS for determlnataon of tariff

for Generatlng Stations specified herein shall apply in like manner to -

Stages or Units, as the case may be, asto Generatlng Stations. o

Where the tariff'_is being determined for Stage or-Generating Unitofa

Generating‘-Station, the Generating Entity shall adopt a reasonable

basis for allocation of Capital Cost relating to common facilities and

‘allo‘cation ‘of joint an‘d common costs across all _Stages or Generating

Units, as the case may be.

Prov:ded that the Generating Entity shall malntaln an Allocatlon,

Statement prowdlng the basis for allocatlon of such costs, which shall be

duly audl-ted_a'nd certified by the statutory audltors a_nd subr_n_lt such
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4.2.3.

4.2.4.

4.2.5:

audlted and certified statement to the Commrssnon along . wnth the
apphcatlon for determination of tariff. ' :
The Generating Entlty shall frle the appllcatlon for determlnatlon of

provisional tariff for new Generating Station, one hundred and eighty

' (180) Days prior to the antlczpated CcOoD of Generatlng Untt or Stage or

Generating Station as a whole, as the case’ may be.
The Generating Entity shall make an application for determlnatron of
_ tariff based on capital expenditure mcurred or projected to be incurred
up to the COD and addmonai capital expendlture incurred, duly- certifred
by the: statutory auditors. ‘
Provided that the appllcatron shat! contam detalls of underlyrng
assumptrons for the prOJected capital cos_t.and a_ddrtlonal capital cost,

- wherever apphcable

In the case of new Prorects the Generatmg Entrty may be allowed

i provrs:onal tariff by the Commrssron from the antrcrpated COD based on

- 4.26.

80,7,

the projected capital expendrture

If the COD is delayed the prows:ona! tariff granted shall be appllcable till

the _det_ermrnatron of tariff by the Commission. The generatmg entity shall
file for determination of tariff within 180 days from the date of COD.

The Generating Entity shall file the application for determination of final
tariff for new Generating Station within one hundred and eighty Days

(180) from the COD of Generating Unit or Stage or Generatrng -Station .

as a whole, as the case may be, based on the audrted capital

expendrture and capltalrsatlon as on the COD.

4 3 Dotermlnatlon of Tarlff for Exlstir Generating Statlon

4 3.1.Where the Commission has, at any time prior to Apnl 1, 2019, approved a |

power purchase agreement or arrangem.ent_between a Generatmg Entrty

~ and a Distribution Licensee.or has adopted _the' Tariff ‘contained therein for

supply of electricity from an eXisting 'generating Unit/Station, then the

" Tariff for supply of electricity by such Generating Entity to the Distribution

' purchase agreement or arrangement for such perrod as so approved or

Licensee shall be in accordance with the Tariff ‘mentioned in such power

adopted by the Commrssron

432Where as on April 1, 2019 the power purchase agreement or
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4.4,

4.5.

G-714/4.

arrangement between a Generating Entity and a Distribution Licensee for,

supply. of electricity from an existing Generating Unit/Station: or the tariff

therein has not been approved by the Commission, or where there is no

- power purchase agreement or arrangement, the supply, of electricity by

such Generating Entity to the Distribution Licensee after April 1, 2019
shall be in accordance with a power purchase agreement approved by the
Commissron

Provided that the petition- for approval of such power purchase
agreement or arrangement shall be filed by the Distribution Licensee with
the Commission within three m‘onthe from the date of notification of these
Regulations:

Provided further that the supply of electrrcrty shall be allowed to
continue under the present agreement or arrangement until such time as
the Commission approves such power purchase agreement, and shall be
discontinued forthwith if the Commission rejects it, for reasons to be

recorded in writing.

-Determination o Tariff for New Generating Stations

The Tariff for the supply of ‘electricity by a Generating Entity to a Distribution
Licensee from a New Generating Unit/Station shall be in accordance with the

Tariff determined in accordance with these Regulations.
TariffOrder ' o

4.5.1.

4.5.2.

The Commission shall, within one hundred and twenty (120) Days from
receipt of a compleie petition, and after considering all suggestions and
objections received from the public —

(a) Issue a Tariff Order accepting the Petition with such modifications or

conditions as may be stipulated in that Order.

(b) Reject the petition for reasons to be recorded in writing if such

petition is not in accordance with the provrsrons of the Act and the

rules and Regulations made thereunder or any other provisions of ‘

law, after giving the Petitioner a reasonable opportunity of being
heard. | ,
The Petitioner shall provrde the approved tanff schedule on its internet
website, and make available for sale a booklet containing such tariff to

any person upon payment of reasonable reproduction 'ch'arges. The
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| approved tariff shall also be pu’blli.shed in at least two English and two
Telugu language daily newspaners having wide circulation in the area of
sdpply of the Dlstribution Licensee to Whom the electricity is proposed to
be supphed in terms of the Tariff Order. |
4.5.3." The Tariff so published shall be in force from the date stlpulated in the
Order and shall, unless amended or revised, continue to be in force for
; such penod as may be stlpulated therein. '
4, 6 Adherence to Tariff Order_

4.6.1. No tariff or part of any tanff may ordmanly be amended more frequently
than once in a Year, except in respect of any changes expressly
permitted under uncontrollable factors as speci'ﬁed in clause 6.7 of this
Regulatlon e | 4

4.6.2. Ifany Generatlng Entlty recovers a price or charge exceeding the tariff
-determlned under Section 62 of the Act and in accordance wnth these

- Regulatnons the excess amount shall be payable to the person who has

paid such price or charge along with mterest equlvalent to the Bank
Rate as deﬁned in this Regulatlons WIthout prejudice to any other
liability to ‘which such Generatmg Entity may be subject to: 5
Provided that such interest payable to any party shall not be
allowed to be recovered through the Aggregate Revenue Reqwrement
of the Generatlng Enttty _

Provided also that the Generatlng Entity shall maintain separate
| de‘tails of such interest paid or payable by it, and .shall submit them to
the Commission along with its Petition. _ f |
4.6.3. The Generatsng Entity shall submit periodic returns as may be requrred

by the Commission, containing operational and cost data to enable itto

monitor the |rnp1ementat10n of its Order.

5.  Date of Commercial Operation (COD)

5.1. Date of COmmercial Operation (CODJ:he date of commercial operation of a ‘

Generating Station or Unit or element thereof shall be determined as detailed in
clauses 5.2 & 5.3 below. . “ i '
5. 2. COD for Thermal Generating StatlonCOD in case of a Generatsng Umt or

Block of the Thermal Generatmg Station shall mean, the date declared by the .
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Generating Entity after demonstrating the Maximum Continuous Rating (MCR)

- or the Installed Capacity (IC) through a successful Trial Run after notice to the

Beneficiaries, if any, and in case of the Generating Station as a whole, the COD

of the last Generating Unit or Block of the Generatlng Station:
Provided that:

5.2.1.Where the Beneficiaries have been tied up for purchasing power from

the Geherating Station, the Trial Run shall commence after seven Day

" notice by the Generating Entity to the Beneficiaries and SLDC and

scheduling shall commence from 00:00 hour after completion of the Trial

Run.

5.2.2.Where the Beneficiaries have not been tied up -for purchasing power .

from the Generating Station, the Trial Run br each repeat of Trial Run’

shall commence after a notice of not less than seven Days by the
Generating Entlty to the SLDC
- 5.2.3.The Generating Entlty shall certify to the effect that:

(a)

©

The Generating Station meets the key prowsmns of the technlcal
standards of Central Electricity Authority (Technical Standards for

Construction of Electrical plants and eléctric lines) Regulations, 2010 -

‘as amended from time to time and Grid Code as amended from time

to time.

The main plant equipment and auxiliary syStern_s- including Balance

‘of Plant, such as Fuel Oil System Coal Handling Plant, DM plant,

pre—treatment plant, fire-fighting system Ash Dlsposal system and

any other site specific system have been commxssmned and are

capable of full load operation of the Units of _the Generating Station
on sustained basis.
Permanent electric supply system including emergency supplies and

-all necessary instrumentation, control and protection systems and

auto loops for full load op'eration of unit have been put in service.

5.2.4.Trial Run shall be in accordance with clause 2.81 of these Regulations.

5.2.5.The certificate required in clause 5.2.3 above shall be signe‘d by the
Chief Executive Officer/Chief Managing Director/Managing Director or

the highest relevant authority of the Generating Entity and a copy of the

certificate - shall be submitted to the Member Secretary, (Southern
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Reglona! Power Committee) and SLDC before declaration of COD The v
Gene_ratlng Entity shall submit to the Commission the approval of Board
of Directors to the certificates as required herein within a period of 3
months of the COD. |

3.2.56: Where on the basrs of the Trial Run, a Umt of the Generatlng Station fa;[s
| to demonstrate the Unit capacity oorrespondlng to Maximum Continuous
Rating or Installed Capacity or Name Plate Rating, the Generating Entity
has the option to de-rate the capaoity or to go for repeat Trial Run. Where
the Generating Entity decides to de-rate the Unit capacity, the .
demonstrated capacity in such cases shall be more or equal to 105% of
de-rated capaCJty

5.3. The SLDC shall convey clearance to the Generating Entlty for declaration of

~ COD within 7 Days of rece:vmg the generatron data based on the _Tnal Runas
per the procedu‘re laid down'in the Indian Electricity Grid Code 2010 and
TSERC State Grid Code. Further, if the SLDC notices any deficiencies i the

Trial Run, it shall be communicated to the G'efn_erat_'ing 'Entity'rwithin' seven (7)
Days of.reoeiving.the generat'ion data' based on the Trial Run.

Pro_v-ided that the eommuhicatiOn system and d_ata teiemetry system is put
into 'service affer completion of COD 'certificatioo by SLDC including test
transfer of voice and data to respectlve control centre as certiﬁed by the State
Load Dispatch Centre. _

Bk Hydro Generatmg Stat:omCOD in case of a Generating Unit of a, hydro

‘Generatmg Station, including Pumped Storage Hydro Generatmg Station, the
date declared by the Generating Station from 00: 00 hour(s) after the scheduling
process in accordance with the Indian Electricity Grl_d_ ode 2010 and TSERC
State Grid' Code is fully implemented and in relation to the Generating Station as
a whole the date declared by the Generating Entlty after demonstrating peaking

_ capablllty correspondlng to the Installed Capacity of the Generatrng Station
. through a sticcessful Trial Run and after obtaining clearance from the SLDC, and
in relat:on to the generatmg station as a who!e the COD of the last generating
o Unrt of the Generatmg Station: '
Provided that: : _
- 5.4.1. where the BeneﬁCiaries have _beerr’ tied up for purchasing power from

~ the Generating Station, scheduling process for a Generating Unit of the
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5.4.2.'Where the Beneficieries'have not been tied up for purchasing power

‘B.4.3:
(a)

- amended. from time to time and Grid Code as amended from time to

(b)

Dewaterlng system Prlmary and Secondary coolmg system LP and HP-
; _alr compressor, Firefighting system, etc.. have been commissioned and

TELANGANA GAZETTE EXTRAORDINARY
Gen'erafing. Station dr' demonstration . 'of 3 -peaking sapability
corresponding to the Installed Capac;ty of the Generating Station
through a successful Trial ‘Run or each repeat of Trial Run shall
commence after at least seven(7) Day notice by the Generating Entity to
the Beneficiaries and scheduling shall commence from 00:00. hours

after compietion of the Trial Run.

from the Generating Statson the Trial Run shall commence aﬂer a notice

" of not less than seven Days by the Generat:ng Entlty to the SLDC

the Generating Entity shall certn‘y to the effect that:
the Generat:ng Station meets the key prowsuons of the techmcal

standards of Central Electricity - Authority (Technlca! Standards for

C_onstr-ueu_on of El_ectncalfplants_ and electric lines) Regula’uons_-,,ZOflO as

time.

The maln p!ant equnpment and auxiliary systems :nciuding Drainage -

. are capable for full load operation of units on sustamed basis - -

()

Permanent electnc supply system mcludmg emergency suppl:es and all
necessary Lnstrumentatlons Control and Protection Systems and auto

loops for full load operation of the unit are put into service.

(i) The certificate required in clause 5.4.3 above shall be 3tgded bythe

- Chief Executive Offic'e_rlChief. Mansging Director/Managing Director
or the'h’ighést_ relevant authority of the Generating Entity and a copy of

the certificate shall be submitted to the Member Secretary, (Southern’

Regaonal Power Commlttee) and SLDC before declaratlon of COD

The Generatlng Entity shall submit to the Comm:ssmn the approval of
Board of Directors to the certif cates as required herein WIthln a period
of 3 months of the cop.

(i) Trial Run shall be in accordance with clause 2.81 of this Regulation

- (iii) in case a hydro Generat:ng Station w1th pondage or storage is not _

able to demonstrate peaking capabiltty corresponding to the Installed
Capacity for the reasons of insufficient reservoir or pond level, the
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- COD of the last Unit of the Generating Station shall be considered as

the COD of the Generating Station as a whole, and it will be
mandatory for such hydro Generating Station to demonstrate peaking
capability equiv'alent to Installed Capacity of the Generating Unit or
the Generating Station as and when such reservoir/pond level is

achieved.

(iv) If a run-of-river hydro Generating Station or a Generating Unit thereof

v)

is declared under commercial operation during lean inﬂows period
when the water inflowis insufficient for such demonstration of peaking
capabillity, it shall be mandatory for such hydro Generating Station or
Generating Unit to demonstrate peaking capability equivalenf to

Installed Capacity as and when sufficient water inflow is available. In

‘case of failure to demonstrate the peaking capacity, the Unit capacity
shall be de-rated to the capacity demonstrated with effect from the

COD. ;
Where on the basis of the Trial Run, a unit of the generating station

fails to demonstrate the unit capacity corresponding to ‘Maximum

“Continuous Rating or Installed Capacity or Name Plate Rating, the

generating company shall have the option to either de-rate the
capacity or to go for repeat Trial Run.'If the generating company

~decides to de-rate the unit capacity, the demonstrated capacity in

such cases shall be more or equal to 110% of de-rated capacity.

(vi) The SLDC shall convey clearance to the Generating Entity for

declaration of COD within 7 Days of receiving the géneration data
based on the Trial Run. Further, if the SLDC notices any deficiencies
in the Trial Run, it shall be communicated to the Generating Entity
within seven (7) Days of receiving the generation data based on the
Trial Run. | '

Provided that the communication system and data telemetry system .

is put into service after completion of COD certification by SLDC
including test transfer of voice and data to respective control center as
certified by the State Load Dispatch Centre.
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e.
6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

FinancialPrmciplesFramework

The Generatlng Entity shall manage its finances in an optimum and prudent

manner. _

In determihing the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and tariff of the Ge:ierating

Entity, the Commission shall assess the financial prudence exercised with

regard to the following factors :— |

6.2.1.revenue ; ' #

6.2.2.re0enue expenditure; |

6.2.3. capital expenditure;

Provided that the Commission may disallow a part of the Aggregate

Revenue Requrrement as efficiency measure, if it finds the exercise of such

prudence to have been deficient.

~Thefi nanmal prudence with respect to revenue shal[ be assessed in terms of the-

following parameters

6.3.1.Billing efficiency meesured'as a percentage of the units billed by the
Gen’eréting Ehtity to the total units injected rntp ther_transmis.sic')n system.

6.3.2.Collection efficiency measured as a percentage of the amount collected
by the Generating Entity to the total amount billed. |

6.3.3.Reduction in arrears receivable from Beneficiaries. ’

-6.3.4.Whether revenue collected is in line with the project}ons made in the

Petition and approved by the Commission.

The financial prudence wrth respect to revenue expendxture shatl be assessed in

terms of the fo[Iowrng parameters :— _
6.4.1.Monitoring of the revenue expenditure as against the revenue earned,
such that the expenses and payment obligations of the Generating Entity
to other entities are met in a tlmely manner. |
6.4.2. Mechanism put in place for monitoring adherence to the approved
revenue expenditure, including schedule of interest payments for
long-term loans and working capital.

Provided that, in caee the excess of revenue expenditure over the
revenue earned exceeds 5%, the Generating Entity shall subrnit detailed
justiﬁcaticn.for the mismatch along with its Petition for true-up, including a
comparison of the revenue expenditure and revenue estimated in the petition
with the amounts approved by the Commission and with the actual amount of

«
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6.6.

6.7.

revenue expenditure and revenue, under key heads

Provided further that the Generatmg Entity shall submit a detaried cash |
flow statement for the respectlve business showing the various sources of
revenue the actual amount of cash collected agalnst the amount billed, the

comp_anson of the actual revenue expendrture and caprtal expendlt_ure with _the

projected and approved revenue expenditure and capital expenditure.
Provided also that, in case its payment obligations to other-entities are not
regularly met, the Generating Entlty shall provrde justification for such shortfall

with reference to its cash flow statement.

© 6.5. The financial prudence with respect to capital expenditure shall be assessed in

terms of the following parameters
6.5: 1 Mechanism put in place for monltonng the physrca! progress of PrOJects

w1th respect to their. ong:nal schedule.

6.5.2. Optimum drawal of loans i in accordance with the physical progress of the

capital expenditure schemes and efficient utilisation of such loans.
6. 5 3 In case, the excess of actua! capital expenditure or caprtalrsat:on exceeds
10% of that approved by the Commissron the Generatrng Entrty shall

submit detaried ;ustlﬁcahon for such excess -along with its petrtron for

true- -up.

6.5.4. In case any Project has not been commenced during the Year despite the-

‘Commission’s approval, detailed justification shall be submitted along
with the petition for true-up. '
Uncontrollable factors .
The uncontro[lable factors” shall comprrse the folldWrng factors, WhICh were
| beyond the control of, and could not be mitigated by the Petrtloner as
determined by the Commrssron '
6.6.1. Force Majeure events
6.6.2. Change in law
6.6_.3 Variation in fuel cost on account of variation in price of primary and/or
- secondary fuel prices ‘ _
' 6.6.4 Variation i in market interest rates for Iong-term loan
6.6.5. Variation in frerght rates
6.6.6. Non-Tariff Income
Controllable factors

[Part-11
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(O8]

(U8

Variations or expected vanatlons in the performance of the*Petltloner whtch'
may be attributed by the Commission to controllable factors include, but are

not limited to the following:

BT Variations in capitaIiSation on account of time or cost overruns or
|neﬁ" iciencies in the implementation of a capital expenditure scheme
not attributable to an approved change in its scope, change in statutory

, - levies or Force Majeure Eyents ' _

' 6.7.2. Variation in intere_st and finance charges, return on equity, and
‘ depreoiation on-accountof yariation in capitalisation as specified in
clause 6.8.1 above; | e B |

6.7.3. Variation in performance parameters such as Avaltabmty Aux;hary

| _Consumpt_aon, Secondary fuel oil ‘consumption, Gross Station Heat
Rate. | | |

' 6.7'.‘4. Variation in amount of interest on working capital;

6.7.5. Variation in Operation And Maintena‘nce _Expenses;

6.7.6. Var:atfon in coal transit Iosses o

6.8. -Mechanism for passthrough cf gains or Iosses on- account of
uncontrollable factors L ' ‘
6_.8.1‘ ~ The uncontrollable cost shall be determlned based on a petition

filed by the concerned Generating Entlty '
6.8.2 The aggregate gain or. Ioss to a Generating Entity on account of
variation in- cost of fuel from the sources considered in the Tariff Order,
inclu‘d'i'ng' blendin'g' ratio of coal procured from different sources, shall be passed
~ through asan adjustment inits energy charges on a monthly basis, as specified
in clause 21.6 of this Regulation. _

6.8.3 The consequentla[ impact of decisions of hrgher Courts or Tribunals or

" Review Orders passed by the Commission on the Generating Entity |

' (a) for the first and second Years of the Control Period shall be
addressed in the Mld-term Rewew Order

(b) for the third, fourth or fifth Years of the Control Perlod shall be

, | addressed in the End of Control Period Review Order

6.9 Mechanism for sharmg of gains or Iosses on. account of controllable
factors ' '

G-714/5.
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7.2.

7.3

6.9.1 The approved aggregate gain to the Generatmg Entity on account of
: controllable factors shall be dealt with in the following manner
~ (a) Two-third (2/3") of the amount of such gain shall be passedonas a
rebate in tariff over such period as may be stipulated in the Order of
the Commission. '
(b) The balance amount of such gain shall be retamed by the
Generating Entity

6.9.2 The approved aggregate loss to the Generating Entity on account of

controllable factors shall be dealt with in the fo!]owmg manner: .

(a) ‘One-third (1/‘3rd) of the amount of such loss may be passed on as

an additional charge in tariff over sucn period as may be stipulated

in the Order of the Commission. .
(b) The balance amount of such !oss shall be absorbed by the
Generating Entlty e

Business Plan andCapltal investment plan

‘a) Business Plan

The Applicant shali file a. business plan along with- capltal rnvestment plan for its

Generation Business on or before 1st April of the Year preceding the first Yearof

the Control Period for a duration covering at least the entire Control Perlod
The business plan shall cover detarls such as Generat:on Plannmg and

forecasts, Capex Investr_nent Plan, future, performance targets, pr.oposed_

efficiency improvement measures, Compliance status of Environmental norms,

'Saving in opérating costs. The Business Plan shall also include, financial
statements such as balance sheet profit and loss statement and cash flow
statement for the Control Period duration, any other new measures to be
initiated for the 'Generatron Business, e.g. automation, IT initiatives etc.

b) Capitallnvestment Plan |

The Capital Investment Plan submitted along with Business Plan shall include -

the details of purpose of'investment, broad technical 'speciﬁcations of the
proposed investment and supporting details. It shall also include capital
structure, capitalization schedule with milestones for completion, financ‘ing plan
with sources of investment, physical targets, Cost-benefit analysis, prioritization

of proposed investments etc.
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7:6;

Tt

7:8:

The capital investment plan during the Control Period shall be commensurate
with the requirement of exfsting capacity. _ ' . ,
In Case, the Commission approves lesser afnou_nt of capital expenditure than
-filed by the App[ib‘ant for approval, the Commission may allow the respective
Applicant to determine the priority of schemesrio be . considered within the
approved amc;unt.
The capital investmeht plan for Renovation and Modernization shall be
submitted with all information/data for approval of the Commission with a
Detailed Project Report (DPR) elaborating the following elements:
i, | Complete scope and justification;
ii. Estimated life extension of the asset;
iii. Improvement in performance parameters;
iv. Cost-benefit analysis; '
v. Phasing of expenditure;
vi. Schedule of completion with milestones;
vii. Reference price I.evel;
viii. Estimated completion cost;
ix. Other relevant aspects.

‘In the normal course, the Commission shall not revisit the approved capital

investment plan during the Control Period. However, during the Mid-Term -

Review, the Commission shall monitor the Year-wise progress of the actual
capital expenditure incurred by the Applicant vis-a-vis the ‘approved capital
expenditure. o '

Provided that the actual capital expenditure incurred shall be'only as per
the approved capital investment plan. | |
In case the capital expenditure is reqﬁired for emergency work which has not
been approved in the capital investment blan, the. respecfive- Applicant shall

submit an application (containing all relevant information along with reasons

justifying emergency nature of the proposed work) seeking approval by the

Commission. The Applicant shall take up the work prior to the approval of the
Commission provided that the emergency nature of thé scheme has been
approved by its Board of Directors: :

Provided that the Applicant shall s\ubmit the pending details required as
per clause 7.1 within 10 Days of the submission of the application for_emergency
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work. ‘ ' '

Provided that for the purpose of this clause, such approved capital
expenditure shall be treated as a part of actual capital expenditure incurred by

the Applicant as well as the approved capital expenditure by the Commission.

7.9. The Commission shall approve the capital investmgnt plan within 90 Days from

the date of its filing or submissioln of complete information, whichever is earl]ef,
after considering all suggestions and objections of all stakeholders.

C) Computation of Capital Cost

7.10.The capital cost admitted by the Commission after Prudence Check shall form

the basis for determination of tariff.

Provided that Prudence Check may include scrutiny of the reasonableness
of the capital expenditure, financing plan including the choice and manner of
funding, interest during construction, use of efficiént technology, cost over-run
and time over-run, and such other matters as may be._ considered appropﬁate-by

the Commission for determination of tariff.

7.11.Capital cost for a capital investment Project shall include:

7.11.1. The expenditure incurred or projected to be incurred up to the date of
| - commercial operation of the project as admitted by the Commission
after Prudence Check. |
7.11.2.Interest during construction and financing charges, on the Ipans (i)
- being equal to 70% of the funds deployed, in the event of the actual
equity in excess of 30% of the fiJn.ds deployed, by treating the excess
- equity as normative loan, or (ii) being equal to the actual amount of loan

in the event of the actual equity less than 30% of the funds deployed.
7.11.3.The interest during construction and financing charges, on the loans as
admitted by fhe Commission after Prudence Check in accordance with

clause 7.21 & 7.22 of this Regulation. '

7.11.4.Capitalised initial spares subject to the ceiling rates specified in clause

7.12 this Regulation.
7.11.5. Additional capitalisation determined under this Regulation clause 7.14

7.11.6.Any gain or loss on account of foreign exchange rate variation

pertaining to the loan amount availed up to COD, as admitted by the

Commission after Prudence Check.

7.11.7.Adjustment of revenue on account of sale of Infirm Power by

[Part-1l
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7.11.8.
.‘approved by the Commlssmn

- specified herein for the capital cost of New Generating Unit/Station, .

rate variation pertammg to the Ioan amount availed up to COD shall be -

_Generatmg Station in excess of fuel cost pnor to the COD as specified

under this Regulation at clause 8 of this Regulation.
Increase in cost in contract packages subject to Prudence'(‘:heck and

Provided that in case the actual capital cost is Iower than the

approved capltal cost, the actual capital cost, subject to Prudence

Check and in accordance with the conditions and m_ethddology

shall be considered- for determination of tariff of the Genefafing Ehtity'

Provided that any gain or loss on-account of forelgn exchange

adjusted only agasnst the debt component of the capital cost:

Provided further that the capital cost of the assets forming part

o of the Project but not put to use or not in use, shail be excluded from

 the capital cost:

- with necessary documentary evidence of such request and

use:

Provided also that the Generatmg Entity “shall submlt

documentary evxdence in support of its claim of assets being put to

the specific requiremen't of a Generating Entity shall be sobstantiated

undertaklng received.

7.12. The actual capltal expendnur'e ason COD for the Original Scope of‘Work based

on audited accounts of the Generatlng Entity or Project, as the case rnay be,

shall be considered subject to Prudence Check by the Commlssron

718 Truing up of the capital cost for the new Generatmg Station shall be done by the

Commission based on Prude_noe Check of the audited capital expenditure and

capitalisation as on COD.

7.14. Where the actual capital cost incurred on Year to Year basis is lesser than the

capital cost approved for determmahon of tanff by the Commission on the basns '

of the projected capital cost as on the COD or on the basrs of the pro;ected

additional capital cost, by five percAent (5.%) or more, the Generating Entlt_y shall

refund to the Beneficiaries as approved by the Commission, the excess tariff

realized corresponding to excess capital cost, along with interest at 1.20 times

- Provided also that any capital expenditure in'CUrred' based on
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7.15. Where the actual capltal cost incurred on Year to Year basis is higher than the -

_ 'of the Bank Rate plus 250 basis points, as prevaient on the first Day of April of -

the respective Frnanc:a! Year.

capital « cost approved for determmatlon of tanff by the Commxssmn on the baszs'i
- of the pro;ected capltal cost as on the COD or on the baSlS of the pro;ected

additional capital cost, by five (5%) percent or more, the Generating Entity

shall, subjectto_the approva[ of the Commission, be en'titie_d to recover fromthe -

'Beneficiariesthe shortfall in tariff co’rres-ponding' to such decrease in capital
cost along with interest at 0.80 times of the Bank Rate plus 150 basis points, as
prevalent on the first Day of April of the respective Financial Year.

7.16. In relation to multi-pUrpose hydroelectric Pr()jects, with irrigation, flood control

7.17. The capital cost may include ‘initial spares capitalised as a percentage of the

and power components, the capital cost chargeable to-the power component of

the Project only shall be considered for determmatlon of tariff. .

plant and machinery cost up to the Cut-Off Date, subject to the followirig ceiling

_norms - _ % ,
. Coal based Generat:ng Statlons _ : i ' i 5 4.0%

7.18.

Gas turbine/combined cycle Generatrng Statons - 4.0%

'-Hydro Generating Statlons including Pumped Storage Hydro

Generatmg Statrons

4.0%

Prov:ded that:

7 17 1. Where the benchmark norms for initial spares have been pubhshed as

‘part of the benchmark norms for caprtai cost by the CERC Regulatlons
such norms shal] apply to the exclu5|on of the norms specrﬁed above.
7. 17 2 Where the Generattng Staf‘ on has any transm:ss:on equrpment
" formrng part of the Pro;ect the cemng norms for |n|t|ai spares for such
equrpment shall be as per the cealmg norms specrﬁed for fransmission
system under CERC Regutatlons '

7 17 3.For the purpose of computmg the cost of mltla! spares, plant and |

machmery cost shaII be conssdered as Pro;ect cost as on Cut-Off Date .

| i excludmg IDC IEDC Land Cost and cost of civil works |
The |mpact of revaluatron of assets shal! be permitted provrded it does not -
result i rn mcrease in tarn“f of the Generatmg Ent:ty '
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Provided that any benefit from s_-tich revafuation shall be passed on to

persohs who share the-cap'acity charge in case of a Genetating Entity at the

‘time of Multi Year Tariff determination or M:d-term Review or End of the Control '

Period Review, as the case may be.
7.19. Additional Capitalisation | |
7.19.1.The capital expenditure actually incurred or projected to be incurred, on

the fol]owing counts within the Original Scope Of Work, after the COD

and up to the Cut-Off Date, may be admitted by the Commission -

subject to Prudence Check. Any'additicnal_ capitaliiation after COD

needs prior approva[ of the Commission:-

(a)
(b)

(o).

Un-dlscharged Ilabmtles recognlsed to be payable at a future date '

Works deferred for execution; .
Procurement of initial capital spares within the Original Scope of

" . Work in accordance with clause 7.12 of these'?egulaticns;

(@

€)
®

(@

()

Liabilities to meet award of arbitration or for compliance of the
order or decree of a court of law;
Change in law or compliance of any existing law;

Any expenses to be incurred on account of need for higher security
-and safety of the Station/Unit as advised or directed by. appropriate
Gc‘wernmeht ‘Agencies of statutory authorities responsible for

national secunty/lnternal securlty

Deferred works relating to ash pond or ash handling system and_

coal handlmg in the Orlginal Scope of Work

Any capital expenditure found justified after Prudence Check‘

necessrcated on account of modifi cations required or done in fuel

‘receiving system arls:ng‘-due to non-matenailsatuon of coal supply

corresponding to full coal Ii‘hkag'e in respect of Thermal Generating

~ Station as result of c:rcumstances not within the control of the

()

Generating Statlon

“Any liability for works executed prior to the Cut-Off Date, after

- Prudence Check of the details of such un-dtscharged liability, total

estimated cost of package reasons for such wuthhotdlng of

i payment and release of such payments etc.

Prowded that in case of such |labl|ItIeS the detatls and'
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'releva'nt_Board of Director approvals lshall. be submitted along with

the Petition for determination of final Tariff after the COD of the
Generating Unit/ Station.

Any lrablhty for works admrtted by the Comm:ssmn after the Cut«Off

Date to the extent of dlscharge of such liabilities by actual

payments
Any additional capital expendlture whzch has become necessary
for efficient eperatlon '

Provided that the claim shall be substantiated with the

technical justification duly supported by documentary evidence like
test results carried out by an independent agency in case of
detenoration of assets damage caused- by natural calamities,
obsolescence of technology, up- gradation of capacrty for the

technlcat reason such as increase in fault level.

An additional capltal expendlture for complying wdh statutory
norms - for Envn'onment in accordance ‘with the appropnate'
notif catlons of ‘Ministry of Environment, Forest and Cllmate'

Change

Commission for change in operational parameters such as change

in normative Auxiliary Consumption on account of technology
changes in the Generating Plant for e.g. installation of Flue Ga_s.
Desulfurization (FGD). P |

In case of hydro Generat:ng Stations, any expenditure WhICh has

~ become necessary on account of damage caused by natural

calamities (but not due to flooding of power house attributable to
the n_eghgence of the Generating Entity) and due to geological

reasons after adjusting the proceeds from any insurance scheme,

" and expenditur‘e incurred due'to ‘any additional work which has

become necessary | for successful and effi cient plant operation.

T 19 2. The details of works included in the Ongmal Scope of Work along with

estimates of expenditure, liabilities recognized to be payable at a future

date and the works deferred for execution shall be submitted along with .

Prov:ded that, the Generatmg Company shall approach to the. R
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o the pe‘u’uon for determmation of f nal tanff after COD of the Generatmg

S S UntEStation i it Teal af Yo molighshios sinted ASO
19 3 Any' eXpehdrture which ‘has 'Been’‘claimed: under renovation and
7880 S darmidation’ (Elause 748" of this!! Regulationyoior repairs  and
maintenance under O&M expenses (ciause 19 of tHese!Regulation),

T A ot B laimed Under this AUl oo ol seen it (1)
'7 194, Impact ‘of additional capfta!rsa’tndh on’ tanﬁ if'any, shdllbe considered
durmchid—térm- Reviéw oF tariff determination forothe next Control

" Peribd a8 the ¢ase’ may'bgl M#8d 280 fecos ot gesd nl (d)
7“ 19 5 Any expendﬂure on miscellangois’ *te‘msi'essets Hike-normal tools and
°IRERE Cigekies personal- computers"quﬁ'rﬂure Hirs“cohditioners, . voltage
_ stabilizers, refrigerators, fans, coolers,: TV swashing machines,
’ HaAtcorvedtors; ‘catpets,  mattressésoete. brought-after(the Cut-Off

BB O A IEHAI hot 'be’ éohsidlerst! S for additional capitalisation for

L qetermation "Bf tariff. The: said s aﬁe lfdstrated sand may include

any other smlar ttems ,
7 20 Dé-CapitallsatIOn sovile S Harle y ': YE2inE :‘r 5y

TG T case df 'Be-Capitalisation of aseet the origmal oost of such asset

shall be deducted from thé'value efagro’ss fixed %assefs,(GFA), on and

- from the dafé%%ﬁ‘%th‘étf'gééétﬁae»ﬁéeﬁ%femevéﬁ from GFA:block &nd: <

3"”corr‘espbhdﬁng 1oan as " well’ ‘&s17equity rshall “be deducted . from
“out N> and the ity respectweiy ‘in‘sthe year of

.r-;, .

"'*De-Ca;Sﬁa isahon' oG 1020 .)-'-.%25:'-::-:.':._': & W f :
‘7 20 2 Loss 6rGain due to De Capitalisation of assetBased ‘on® the directions
“of the Comrmission’ dié to technological obseleecence ‘wear & tear,

~etc:or die t6 change infawor foroemajeure ‘which cannot be re-used,
' ghall be® adjué‘ted ifi'the ARR ‘of the Generation Entity in the relevant
Wi Gpggperetl el v fnsvelsy ed of :

‘7 20 3 L6sS o 'Gaih' due “to- De<Capitalisation  of asset proposed by the
L2 Genera‘uon Entlty itself forthe reasons not coverediundet clause 6.7 of
-~ this Regulatrdh shall be to the ecceunt ofthe’ Genération Entity.

P e I Py e ety e s ey e i) ey
(2 \-.;».‘-,,ni! BaoEweh -',.\:! LAiit

& 20 4 ‘toss or Gam due'to De-Ca’pltahsatten of asset after the completion of
20 90110 SHAaR B o“f“asset shall be to-the aceaint of the Generation Entity.
7 20 5 Pnnmples for treatmeht of cépltai asset wHich has’been removed from
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- (b)' In case the asset has-been depreciated less than 70% of its book '.

(d) The Generatmg Enttty shallbe allowed return on equ1ty, lnterest on

TELANGAN‘A GAZETTE EXTRAORDINARY

'GFA befors completlon of its Useful l.lfe w:th prior approval of the
Commlssmn and such femoved asset is. held |n reserve for a

' contmuous period of more than six months for |ts reuse later shall be as :

follows:

(a) In case the asset has been depreoiate_d_rnore t_han 70% of its book

value, depreciation shall not be allowed on such asset f.ro_tn the

date of .De—Capitalisation to the date such asset is put to re-use;

value, dep‘reciation' shall be allowed up to 70% of the total value of -

asset from the date of De- Capltahs*‘*'on, to the date such asset is
put to re-use; | ' '
(c) Incase such asset has been put to re-use, dlfferentlal of max:mum

" permissible deprec:atlon as per CERC Regulatlons and actual

accumulated deprecnatron shall be allowed from the date such
asset i lS put to re- use;

loan on the wntten down value of the decapitalised asset from the
date such asset is put to re- use.

7. 21 Renovation and Modernlsatlon for Life Extenslon

7211

: proposal with a-_Det_alled Project Report (DPR) detallmg the co_mplete_

7.21.2

The Generatlng Entlty shalll file a petition towards the fag end (5 years
' before) of the Useful Life before the Commission for approval of the

',scope' justification, cost-benet“ t analysis, estimated Iife extension-_
' from a reference date, financial package phasnng of expenditure,
' _sohedule of completion, reference pnce tevel estimated cornpletion ;

cost including forelg_n exchange component, if any, and any other
“information considered to be relevant by the Generating Entity for

| "meeting the expendi’ture on renovation _a_nd modernisation (R&M-)_for

the purpose of extension of life beyond the originally recognised
Useful Life as specified in CERC Regulations.

The Comm:ss:on may grant approval for additional capital cost on.
" account of R&M after due consideration of reasonableness ofthe cost -
estimates, financing plan, schedule of completlon, interest during

construction, use ofefﬁcien_t technology, cost-benefit analysis, and
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such other factors as may be considered relevant by the Commission.

Provided that -any expenditure included in the R&M on
consumab[es'and cost of components and spares which is generally
covered in the O&M expenses shall pe suitably deducted after due
Prudence Check from the R&M expenditure to be allowed.

Any expenditure on replacement, renovation and modernisation or

extension of life of old fixed assets, as applicable to Generating -

Entities, shall be considered after writing off the net value of such
replaced assets from fhe original capital cos't, and shall be computed
as follows:- _

Net Value of Replaced Assets = OCRA - AD

Where, E

OCRA: Original Cost of Replaced Assets

- AD: Accumulated depreciation pertalnlng to replaced assets

Provaded that, in case the original capital cost of the replaced

asset is not avaflabie for any reason, it shall be con51dered by the

- Commission on a: _case-to-case_basns.

- Provided further that the amount-of insurance proceeds received,
if any, towards da'mage to any asset requiring its replacement shall be

first adjusted towards outstanding actual or normative loan ; and the

balance amount, _if any, shall be utilised to reduce the capital cost of

such replaced'asset and eny further balance amount shall be

conS|dered as Non-Tanff Income.

7 21.4.In case of gas/ liquid fuel based open/ comblned cyc[e Thermal

Generating Stahon, any expenditure which has become necessary for

renovation of gas turbines/steam turbine after twenty five (25) years of

operation from its COD and an expenditure necessary due to obsolesce

or non-avallablllty of spares for efficient operatlon of the Statlons shall

be allowed.

Provided that any expenditure included in the R&M on

consumables and cost of components and spares which is generally
covered in the O&M expenses during the major overhaul of gas turbine
shall be suitably deducted after due prudence from the R&M

expenditure to be allowed.
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215, Any expendrture lncurred or prOJected to be mcurred and admstted by the

' expendlture and hfe extens:on “and after deductrng the accumulated

' depreCIatlon already recovered from the Orlgmal Pro;ect COot shall form

the bas:s for determlnatlon of tanff
7 29, INTEREST DURINS CONSTRUCTION (IDC)

7221

Ta222.

Interest durlng construction shall be computed correepondmg to the
_loan as speCIﬂed in from the date of mfusron of debt tund and after
taklng into account the utlllsatlon of funds up to SCOD. :

In case of add|t|onal costs on account of IDC due to delay in achlev:ng

the SCOD, the Generatmg Entlty, shall be redun‘ed to furmsh detailed

justifications with supportlng documents for such delay mcludmg
prudent phasmg offunds ' s
lDC shall be allowed dunng the delay penod only on payment basis

and not accrual ba5|s N0 B D850 $ as

-~ s,.:,.l

| _"Entlty in case the caux-jes for over—run are entlrely attnbutable to the

17y fime e

:'Generatmg Entlty' For example lmprudence in" setecflng s

"_contractors / supphers and ln executtng contractua! agreements'

' lncludmg terms and condrtlons of the contracts delay in ‘award of

contractors delay in payments to contractors/ supplrers as per the

‘ ontracts delay |n prov:dlng tnpute Izke maklng Iand avallable to the

B terms of contract mlsmanagement of ﬁnances stackness in prqect

management Irke tmproper coordmatron between the ‘Various

o contractors etc

o

The Comm|SS|on shatl examsne on a case to case ba5|s of the

B _addrttonal cost incurred due to time over-run on acoount of factors

Y '.‘beyond the control of the Generatlng Entlty e g delay caused due to

EARS

e Force Majeure hke natural calamlty The Generatmg Entlty shall clearly

" esfabhsh beyond any doubt that there has been no 1mprudence on the

' part of the Generatlhg Entrty in executmg the F‘rOJect

Provided that the consumers should get full benet”t of the



‘‘‘‘‘‘

o L:q uidated Damages (LDs)reCove red from the contractors/su pplier's of
the Generatmg Entity and the msu‘rance proceeds ifé any, to reduce the

capital cost

Provzded that in case of natural calarmttes, the: Generating

-;--Entiiy shali provide a- certrflcate of. the event and the. de!ay «duration {in

| za 2ol s:;D.a-ys);due to ;.euchacalamlty,g.g&mnQ.émcgm_g .@quih% oocum@g_;gf‘_..such g

' calamzty
7.28: INCIDENTAL EXPEND!TURE BURING CONSTRUCT!QN (IEDC)

028 .inmdentaf expendlturedurmg construction oh&“ be computed. from_the'

Zero Date:and after: iakmg\mte account the foﬂowmg

b) Adjustment for.any: revenue ‘earned. during eanstwcjion pertod up

" to COD on account of interest on deposits or advances; -

February 1, 20191 - TELANGANA GAZETTE EXTRAORDINARY. ... . ...

st arln admnesubie necessary {0 be incurred upto 4 CQQ@S setout he;em ;

9 (c) Adjustment for any other recetpts dunng c@ﬁ&%eﬁéﬁ‘? ddal

ft%? “ehé‘ﬂ b@ f‘équ ed t&fam%sh :

177 (@) Pre-operative: expenses and. additional expendrt,ure when IDC is

- Board of Dlrectors approvals for such delay Incfudmg fhe details of - _' :

s Mo e Tl et b e

3. Any addatlonal ‘cost on account of IEDC due to delay in achlevmg the
T 26D ehall be exanined by tHe' Comm‘*sson on'éase 6°cask basis.

'"i:'cost vanatlon cbrresponding o the perlod of time® dver—run shali be

in the contracts wﬁh suppller or contractor of the' Generatmg Entnty

‘ "admtésxble ‘on “accaunt “of rion

S8 T SR e Xt SR

?lééfmplementahcn Agfeément.~

7.23.6. Initial spares shall be capitalised as a peroentageef thé plant and

: mmdenta! expendlture dunng the penod of delay end hquidated

4.0 caSe the txme"over-fun beyond Scheduied ‘COD’ IS ‘Aot admissible
after due prudence check the increase of capital cost on' account of .

i f”exéluded from capitalisation’ trfeepectwe of price Vaitiation provusuons_'
“Verirun’ 6r ‘¢ost! ot/er-run shall’ be”

“commiissioning’ ef he ‘Generating
;“"'Statronbyschedufed ‘COD; astheeameehoutd be recoVered through e
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8.

machinery cost up to Cut-off Date, subject to the norms specified at
clause 7.12 of this Regulation.

Sale of Infirm Power ,
Treétrnent to the inform power shall be in accordance with the provisions of the
TSERC (Deviation Settlement Mechanism and Related Matters) Regulations as
and when specified by the Commission. _ '
Provided that any revenue earned by the Generating Entity from sdpply of
Infirm Power after accounting for the fuel expenses shall be adjusted towards

reduction in the capital cost based on provisional claims made.

Provided also that the start-up power drawn by the Generating Station from

the Grid shall be adjusted with ex-bus energy and such energy shall be billed to
its Beneficiaries in the proportion of contracted capacities.

Debt Equity Ratio

. For determination of Tariff, the debt-equity ratio for any Project under commercial

operation shall be considered as 70:30 of the amount of capitarlr cost approved by
the Commission under clause 7 of this Regulation, after Prudence Check for
determination of Tariff: ' ' |
Provided that:

- 9.1.1.Where equity actually deployed is less than 30% of the capital cost of the

capitalised assets, actual equity shall be considered for determination of
Tariff. '
9.1.2.Where equity actually deployed is more than 30% of the capital cost,

equity in excess of 30% shall be treated as notional loan of the Generating -

Entity.
Provided further that the Generating Entity shall submit
~documentary evidence for the actual deployment of equity and explain the
source of funds for the equity. ' | '
9.1.3.The equity invested in foreign currency shall be designated in Indian
rupees using the closing exchange rate at the date of each investment.
9.1.4.Any grant/contribution/deposit obtained for the execution of the F’roject

shall not be considered as a part of capital structure for the purpose of -

debt: equity ratio.
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9.2,

The premidm"',' if any, raised by the Generating Entity While'is‘suing share capital

“and investment of internal resources created out of its free reserves, shall be"

reckoned as pard up capital for the purpose of computmg return on equity,

provided such premium amount and rnternal resources are. actua!ly utlllsed for. -

~ meeting the capnta! expendrture of the Generatlng Ent!ty and are wrthrn the

| ceiling of 30% of caprtal cost approved by the Commission.

9.3.

" be used for calculating interest on loan, return on equ:ty and forelgn exchange '

9.4,

9.5.

9.6.

9.7.

- 10.

The debt and equity amount arrived at in accordance with ciause 9.1 above shail :

rate variation.

'The Generatmg Entlty shall submit the audited "staternent regarding |
reconc:hatxon of equity requured and actuall_y deployed to meet the _‘capital'
- expenditure of the Project with documentary e\}idence_approyed by relevant

authority:

movement of eqmty with detalls of return on equity, mcentrvel disincentive, .

addltlonal equrty lnfused distribution of drv:dend normatlve loan etc o

In case of the Generatrng Statron declared under commercual operatlon pnor to1.
“April, 2019, debt equrty ratio allowed by the Commrss:on for determination of
_tariff for the period endlng 31 March 2019 shall be considered.

In case of the Generati ing Stat:on declared under commercral operatron pnor tol1

Commission for determination of tariff for the pe'riod ending. 31 March, 2019, the
Commrss:on shall approve the debt-equrty ratio based on actual mforrnatlon
provided by the Generatlng Entity.

Any expendlture incurred or projected to be lncurred on or after 1 Apn! 2019 as

may be admitted by the Commission as addmonal capltal expendlture for

detemnnatron of tariff, and renovation and modemrsat:on expendrture for life
extensron shaIl be serviced in the manner specrﬁed in clause 9.1 of thrs '

Regulatron

Depreclatlm

* 10, 1 Deprecratlon shail be computed from the COD of a Generatlng Station or Umt

~ thereof. In case of the Tariff of all the Units of a Generating Station for which a

Provrded that the reconcllratuon statement shall mdicate the'

47

| April, 2019, but where debt: equity ratro has n_otrbeen determined- by the_-'

- single Tariff needs to be determined, the depreciation_Shali be computed from .
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the effective. GOD ef the Generetmg S’cat!on takmg into cons;deratlon the

3ot Baziiy vilguide sus samunasy emaln s Yohs muimes Tl

S Pmy;ded that effeetzve GQE) shall be wcarked out by consrdenng the ac:tual
COD and installed: capacity -of all; the Unlis of the Generatlng Statlen tor W_’hICh

=-single: tar;ff negeds tobe determined .1 = boton nueme s tra tdal e T

5 i ( I:

- 10. 2 ‘The, velue base, fer the purpose. of deprematlen shali be 1he capltal cost of the '.

asset admtt{ed by the Commission. In case of’ multiple Units of a Genetatmg

Deprecaatlon ehaﬂ be chargeable from.the first Year of _commercnai operatlon

: 10 3:Inease of -commercial operation.of the assetis. fo;‘_mart of the Year, deprs
~~ shallbe charged on pro-rata basis. = . _
© izt Pfovtded that,. M;here the Generating Entity does not furmsh sufﬁment

anowed et the dlecrehenmf megigmm:ss:en A T
104 ﬁaivgge value Eheealvege yelues of%the ass,et sh.all be&qasﬁeredtas 19{0 and .
depreciex;m shall;be. ,allowed up: zto maxlmum of. 90% of ;her caplia! eosi of the

asset; i SE0C AiahA fa Bsise it 10 B
b Pr;wded thatﬁ;p @ase of hydm_@eneratmg §tatlon, lf ~the salvage vaiue
prev:ded i t e-agreement s;gned bygthe developers with the . State Gwernment

aris for develepment of the- Rlanms lessthen 10"/% same. shell be. conslderep- oy

':;;s*-‘Stat:en wezghted average. hfe for.the. Generatmg Station s,haJl be applled o

='?£,-e:sh-a":b§ e;sgiededefr@mame ;9@9@@!:99?4_\ﬂ!ﬁ%le-@mli}@@. ‘1%9"99!2-?‘%%@!%!&% the

assef:

Prov:ded further that the deprecuable value of land under Iease she}l be
the aggregate of lease payments as per the lease agreement?: itsinewgell 4
10§i:‘> “Depreciehon ‘sHalPbé Calctilatéd anﬁua‘lry ‘basadon Straight Line> Metﬁed and a%
- E rates sp‘e&iﬁeﬁ i CERC (Termis and’ | corditions of Tariff) Reguietqens; 2014, as

" amendéd froti trme 16 time for'the assets 'of the: Geﬁeratlng Emlty
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Provided that the remaining depreciable value as on 3‘1St March of the

~ Year closing after a period of twelve (12) Years from the effective COD of the

> TO.F.

Station shall be spread over the balan‘ce Useful Life of the assets or Extended
Useful Life, as provided in this Regulatlon :

Prov1ded further that in case of repayment of entire loan is- earller than

the perzod of twelve (12) Years from the effective COD the Vrerhalnmg'

depreciable value as on 31% March of the Year of ;repayment, shall be spread
over the balance Us'etul Life of the assets or Extended Useful Life, as provided.in

this Regulation.

In case of the Ems’ung Projects, the balance depreciable value as on 1 April,
2019 shall be worked out by deducting the cumulative depreciation as admitted

by the Commission up to 31 March, 2019 frorn the grOSs depreciable value of

10.8.

10.9.

the assets.

The Generatmg Ent|ty shall subm:t the detalls of proposed capitat expendlture

durmg the fag end of the Project (five years before the end of Useful L|fe) along

with Justiﬁcatlon and proposed life extension.

Depreclatlon in case of plants that have been renovated and modernlsed

10.9.1. For the existing assets deprematlon shall be allowed on the net asset )

value over the revised Useful Life of the plant.

~10.9.2. For new assets that have been installed as part of modernlsatlon and

10.10: In case of De-Cap_italisation of assets in respect of_ Generating Entity or Unit

1.
11.1.

renovation, depreciation shall be a.llowed equally over the Extended
Life. '

there of or any ‘e\l.eme'nt thereof, the cumulative-depre'ciation shall be.adjusted
by taking into account the depreciation recovered in tariff by the de-capitalised

asset durirg its useful services.’

Depreciation shall be re-computed for assets capltallsed at the time of

‘Truing-up along with the Mid-term Review or at the End of the Controt Period,

based on documentary evidence of assets capltallsed by the Petitioner,
subject to the Prudence Check of the Commission, such that the deprematnon
is allowed proportlonately from the date of capltalis_ation

Return on equit) (RoE)
Return on eqmty shall be computed in rupee terms on the equity - base

G-714/7.
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determined in accordance w_ith_clause 9 of this Regulation (Debt equity ratio
clause). _ . |
11.2. RoE shall be computed at the following base rates:
11.2.1.Thermal Generating Stations: 15.50%
11.2.2.Run of the river hydro Generating Station :'15.50%
11.2.3.Storage Type hydro Generating Stations including Pumped Storage
Hydro Generating Stations and Run-of-River Generating Station with
pondage : 16.50%: |
11.2.4.Provided that: |

a) the r_ét_e of return of a new Project shall be reduced by 1% for such
period as may be decided by the Commission, if the ‘Géheratin'g
Station is found to be declared under commercial operat'ioﬁ without
commissioning of any of the Restricted Governor Mode Operation
(RGMO)/ Free Governor Mode Operétion (FGMO), data télemetry,
corﬁmunication system up to load dispatch centre or protection
system: '

b) as and when any of the above requirements in clause 11.2.4 are
found lacking in a Generating Station based on the report submitted
by the SLDC, RoE shall be reduced by 1% for the period for which
the deficiency continues: ; - S

c) The base rates as specified abové or as per Central Electricity
Regulafory Commission  (Terms a'nd Conditions of = Tariff)
Regulations, 2014, including amendménts thereto or any
superseding Regulatiohs, whichever is lower shall be used for the
computation of RoE.

11.3. Tax on return on equity

11.3.1. The base rate of RoE as a!]owed' by the Commission under clause 11.2
shall be grossed up With the effective tax rate of the respective Financial
Year. : ,

11.3.2. The effective tax rate shall be considered on the basis of actual tax paid in
the reépect of the Financial Year in line with the provisions of the relevant
Finance Acts by the concerned Generating Entity, as the case may be.

.l 1.3.3. The actual tax income on other income stream (i.e., income of

non-Generation Business) shall not be considered for the calculation of
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, ‘effective tax rate”.

11.3.4. Rate of return on equity shall be rounded off to three decimal places and
shall be computed as per the formula given below Rafe of pre-tax returm on
equity = Base rate / (7-1) |
Where “t” is the effective tax rate in-accordance with Clause 11.3.1 of this
Regulation and shall be calculated at the beginning of every Financial Year
based on the estimated profit and tax to be paid estimated in line with the
provisions_' of the relevant Finance Act applicable for that financial Year to the
generating entity on pro-rata basis by éxcluding the income of
non-gener'ation and the corresponding tax thereon. '

'11.3.5. In case of Generatlng Entity paying Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) i shall
be considered as MAT rate including surcharge and cess.

11.3.6. lllustration: - _ _
(a) In case of the Generating Entity paying Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

@ 20.96% including surcharge and cess:
Rate of return on equity = 15.50/(10.2096) =19.610%
(b) In case of Generating Entity paying normal corporate tax including
surcharge and cess:
+ Estimated Gross income from generation bus:ness for FY 2014- 15 is
Rs.1,000 Crores ;
. Estimated Advance Tax for the year on above is Rs.240 Crores.
e Effective Tax Rate for the year 2014-15 = Rs.240
... Crores/Rs.1,000 Crores = 24%
» Rate of retum on equity = 15.50/ (1-0.24) = 20.395%
11.4. The Generating Entity, shall true up the grosséd up rate of RoE at the end of
- every Financial Year based on actual tax paid together with any additional tax
demand including interest thereon, duly adjusted for any refund of tax including
interest received from the fﬁcome tax authorities pertaining to the tariff MYT
period on actual gross income of any Financial Year. However, pena]ty, if any,
arising on account of delay in deposit or short deposit of tax amount shall not be
claimed by the Generating Entity. Any under-recovery or over-recovery of
grossed up rate on RoE after truing up, shall be recovered or refunded to
Beneficiaries or the Iong' term transmission customers/DICs as the case may be

oon Year to Year basis.
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Interest and finance chargeen loan ' _
_The amount of loans arrived in the manner as mdlcated in clause 9 of this

Regulatlon reduced by the corresponding loan amount of dee_aprtallsed asset

shall be -considered as gross loan for calculation of interest on loan.

The loan outstanding as on 18t April of the respective Year shall be worked out
'by deducting the cumulative repayment as admitted by the Commission from
the gross loan. _

The repayment for each of the Year of the Control Per:od shall be’ deemed to be
equal to the depreciation allowed for the correspondlng Year/penod In case of
De Capltallsatlon of ‘assets, the repayment shall be adjusted- by takmg into
~account cumulative repayment on a pro rata basis and the adjustment should
not exceed cumulative _deprecrahoh recovered up to the date ~of

‘De-Capitalisation of such asset.

operation of the Project 1rrespectlve of any moratorium period availed by the

Generat:ng Entity.

for actual loan - portfolio sub;ect to the mterest rate spec:fled in these

- Reguletlons as on the date of filing. , ,
' Provaded that in no case the rate of interest on Ioan shall exceed
approved rate of.RoE. '

Prowded' further that if there is no 'actual‘.loan for a particular Year but

normattve loan is still outstandmg, the last available weighted average rate of

interest shall be considered: _ ‘ .
Provided-also that if the Generating Entity does not have actual loan
then the rate of interest shall be c_ohsidered at the ihterest rate as‘,spe'ciﬁed in
| these Regulations as on the date of filing, for the notional loan of the relevant
Control Period: | _ _ «¥, &
Provided that if such rate on notional loan changes by more than MCLR
during the Control Period and such change subsists for more than 3 contihuous

querters in a Year, then the same shall be effected on the notionel loan and

adjusted during true -up at the time of Mid-term Rev:ew and End of Control Period

Revnew

The repayment of loan 'sha[! be considered from the first Year of commercial

The rate of interest on loan shall be based on welghted average rate of interest -

[Part-11
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Provided also that the loan availed through open tendering -process

(Competitive Bidding) among Scheduled Banks, Financial Institutions etc,, shall

be-considered at the rate discovered through open.tende‘ring process but limited

to interest rate specified in these Regulations.

12.6. Refinancing:

12.6.1.

The Generating Entity shall make every effort to re-finance the loan as
long as it results in net savings on interest and in that event the costs

associated with such 'reﬁna'ncing shall be borne by the beneficiaries

-and the net savings shall be shared between the Beneficiaries and the

1262,

12.6:3.

12.6.4.

Generating Entity in the ratio of 2:1 respectively subject to Prudence
Check by the Commission.

The Generating Entity shall submit documentary evidence of the costs
associated with such re-financing. 7

The changes to the terms and conditionslof the loans shall be reflected

from date of such re-financing.

In case of dispute, any of the parties may make an application in

- accordance with TSERC (Conduct of business) Regulations, 2015 as

~ amended from time to time, inciudihg statutory réenactme'nt thereof for

settlement of dispute:

_ Provided that the Beneficiaries shall not withhold any
payment on account of the interest claimed by the Generating Entity
during the pendency of any dispute arising ouf of the re-financing of

loan.



13.

TELANGANA GAZETTE EXTRAORDINARY | L [Part-1]

lnterest on working capltal

The Commission shall calculate the Workmg Capltal reqmrement as follows

COal-based generatlng statlons

(a)

Cost of coal and lime stone towards stock; if ElDDllCElble Lower of
A. maximum coal stock storage capacity [OR]

B. for generation ccrrespondmg to the target availability

* Pit head Generating Station - 15 Days coal cost

* Non - pit head Generating Station - 30 Days coal cost

Cost.of coal and l:rnestone for 30 Days of generation correspondlng to the
target avallabihty, ‘

(c)

Cost of secondary fuel oil for two months of generat:on correspondmg fo
target availability; -

@

Maintenance spares @ 20% of the O&M expenses spec:f:ed in clause 19

@

O&M expenses for one (01) month as speczﬂed m clause 19 of this
Regulatlon : ,

(f)

Receivables equwalent to two months of capacity charges and energy

charges for sale of electricity calculated on target avatlablllty

(9)

fthirty Days of the cost of fuel computed attarget avallablllty depending on

Minus
Payables for fuel (lncludlng OIl and secondary fuel oil) to the extent of

the modahtles of payment

Provided that for the purpose of Trumg -up, the worklng capltal shall be
computed based on the scheduled generatlon or target avallablhty wh:chever
s Iower
Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up for any Year, the
working capital requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of
components of working capital approved by the Commission in the Truing-Up
before sharing of gains and losses; '
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Open-cycle Gas Turbine/Combined Cycle Thermal Generating Stations

(a) [Fuel Cost for 30 Days corresponding to the target availability, duly
taking into account mode of operation of the Generating Station on
~ |gas fuel and liquid fuel _ ‘

(b) |Liquid fuel stock for 15 Days corresponding to the target
availability, and in case of use of more than one liquid fuel, cost of
main liquid fuel duly taking into account mode of operation of the
Generating Stations of gas fuel and liquid fuel

(c) [Maintenance spares @ 30% of Opératibn And maintenance
Expenses specified in clause 19 these Regulations

(d) |[O&M expenses for one month as specified in clause 19 of these -
Regulations ' _ o

(e) |[Receivables equivalent to two months of capacity charge and
energy charge for sale of electricity calculated on target
availability, duly taking into account mode of operation of the
Generating Station on gas fuel and liquid fuel '

(f) Minus

Payables for fuel (including liquid fuel stock) to the extent of thirty
Days of the cost of fuel computed at target availability, depending
on the modalities of payment : '

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up, the working capital shall be
computed baséql on the actual generation or target availability whichever is lower:
Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up-fof any Year, the working
capital requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of components
'7 of working capital approved by the Comnﬁission in the Truing-Up before sharing of

gains and losses

Hydro Generating Station including pumped storahydro-electric
Generating Station

(@) | Maintenance spares @ 15% of Operation And Maintenance
Expenses specified in Regulation 29 '

‘ (b) | O&M expenses‘ for one month as Sp'eciﬁ'ed in these
| Regulations '

(c) | Receivables equivalent to two months fixed cost

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up fot any Year, the working
capital requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of
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components of working capital approved by the Co_mmission 'i_n the Truing-up

before sharmg of gains and losses ; _ _ _
. L3 2 The cost of fuel in cases covered above shall be based on the landed cost
rncurred (taking into account normatrve transfc and hancihng losses) by the

Generatmg Entity and Gross Calorific Value of the fuel as per actual for the

three months preceding the first month for whlch tariff is to be determined

an_d no fuel price escalation shall be provided during the 'far_iff period.
13.3. Rate of interest on working capital shall be on normative basis and shall be
considered as the _Bank Rate plus 150 basis points as on filing date or as on

1! April of the financial Year during the MYT period in which the Generating

Station or Unit thereof is declared under commercial operation, whichever is

' Iater

- Provided that for the purpose of Trurng up for any year mterest on
| working capl‘ral shaH be allowed at a rate equal to the welghted average

S Bank Rate prevailing during the concerned Year plus 150 basis pornts _
13.4. Rate of mterest on worklng capital shali be on nonnatrve basis
notwrthstandmg tha_t the Generating Entlty has not taken loan for working

capital from any outside agency.

14, Rebates and Delayed Payment Charge
a) De!ayed Payment Charges _

; 14.1 In case the payment of bills of generatlon Tariff and - charges by the
Beneﬂc:ary is delayed beyond a period of 60 Days from the date of billing, a
delayed'paymenf charge at the rate of 1.25% per month on the biI['ed amount
shall be levied for the period of delay by the Generatlng Entity, notwithstanding
anything to the contrary as may have been stipulated in the agreement or
arrangement with the Beneficiaries. _ -

14.2 Such delayed payment charge and interest on delayed payment earned by
| the Generating Entity shall not be considered Under its Non-Tariff Income

b) Rebate

14.3 For payment of bills of generation Tariff and - charges within 7 Days of

- presentation of bills, through Letter of Credit or through NEFT/RTGS, & rebate
of 2% on billed'amoum, excluding taxes, cess, dut_ieé etc., shall be allowed.
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15. Components of Tariff _
15.1 The tariff for sale of electricity from a thermal Power Generating Station shall
comprise of two parts, namely,
15.1.1 . The Annual Fixed Charges and |
15.1.2 Energy Charges (for recovery of primary and secondary fuel cost)
15.2 The tariff for sale of electricity from a Hydro Generating Station shall
‘comprise of two parté, namely, the Capacity Charge and Energy Charge
15.3 Annual Fixed Charges:The annual fixed charges shall comprise the
following elements:
15.3.1 Depreciation; .
15.3.2 Interest and finance charges on loan;
15:3.3 Interest on Workinglcap‘ital; .
15.34 Oberation & Maintenance Expenses;
15.3.5 Return on Equity;
Minus
15.3.6 Non-Tariff Income:

Provided that Depreciation, Interest and finance charges on loan,

-

interest on working capital and Return on Equity for Thermal and Hydro
Generating Stations shall be allowed in accordance with the provisions

specified in these Regulations.

16. Non- Tariff lnbome&_ Other Business income
a) Non- Tariff Income | -
- The Generating Emity shall submit forecast of Non-Tariff Income to the
Commission, in such form as may be stipulated by the Commission from
- time to time, whose tentative list is as follows:

Income from rent.of land or buildings;
Net Income from sale of dé-capitalised assets;
Net Income from sale of‘scrap;
Income from statutory investments;
Interest on advances to suppliers/contractors;
Rental from staff quarters;
Rental from contractors;

Income from investment of cornisumer security deposit; :

G-714/8.
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- Income ffrom hi_ré charges from contactors and othérs, etc.
Income from the sale of ash/ rejected coal
The amount of Non-Tariff /other inQOm'e relating to the Generation Business

as approved by the Commission shall'b'e_a deducted from the Annual Fixed

Cost in determining the Annual Fixed Charge of the Generating Entity:
Provided that the Generating Entity shall submit full details of its
forecast of Non-Tariff Income to the Commission in such form as may be

- stipulated by the Commission from time to time. Non-Tariff Income shall also s

be trued-up based on audited accounts
b) Other Business Income

. The net income after tax from Other Business shall be adjusted in the ARR..
The Generating Entity shall follow -segment wise reporting of Other

Business in the audited financial statement and a reasonable basis for

- )alfocatio_n of all joint and common costs between the Licensed Bﬁéiness

and the Other Business and shall submit the Allocatio'h Statément as
approved by the Board of Dlrectors | competent - authority to the'

- Commission along with the appllcatson for determination of tariff;
Provided that loss on account of Other Busmess shall not be

considered in the ARR of the L|censee

17. Norms of operatlon for Thermal Generatmg Stations
17.1  Recovery of capacnty charge, energy charge and incentive by the Generatlng
Entity shall be based on the achievement of the operational norms specified
by the Commlsswn |
17:2 ~ Norms of operatton for exnstlng Generatlng Stations shall be as follows:

“Thermal | KIPSABC]| KiPS- | KiPS
: ‘ ' KTPS | Stage V | Stage VI
; O&M _ R o
Normative Annual Plant _ % 70.00% | 80.00% 80.00%
Availability Factor (Target : ‘ '
Availability) - | | |
Gross Station Heat Rate kcal/kWh 3,000 2,500 2,450
Secondary fuel oil consumption | ml/kWh 2.00 2.00 2.00
Auxiliary Energy Consumption: | % 10.00% |  9.00% 7.50%
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Transit and Handling Losses % 0.80% 0.80% | 0.80%
Thermal RTSB | KTPP- | KTPP-
B ' Stage-1 | Stage-1i
Normative Annual Plant % 75.00% 80.00% | 80.00%
Availability Factor (Target '
Availability) _
Gross Station Heat Rate kcal/kWh 3,000 2,450 2,400
Secbndary fuel oil consumption | mi/kWh 2.00 2.00 2.0
Auxiliary Energy Consumption % 10.00% 7.50% | 7.00%
Transit and Handling Losses % 0.80% 0.80% 0.80%

Provided that, _
i. Target Availability for full recovery of Annuel Fixed Charges shall be 85
% for all thermal Generating Stations, except those covered under
'Regulatlon 17.2. . o
~ii. Full Capacity Charges shall be recoverable at Normetive_ Annual Plant
Availabi]ity Fa’ctor_-(NAPAF) speciﬁed above . of these Regulations.
Recovery of Capacity Charges below the level of Normative Annual Piant
Availability Factor (NAPAF) will be on a pfo—rata basis. At zero
availability, no Capacity Charges shall be payable. '

iii. The Availability certified by SLDC shall also include Backing Down of the

~ Generating Stations for the purpose of reeovery of capacity charges.
iv. The Normative Annual Plant Load Factor (NAPLF) for incentive will be
the same as the Normative Annual Plant Avallabmty Factor (NAPAF)

173 Norms of operation for new Generating Stations. commissioned during or
after the Financial Year 2015 other than those covered in 17.2 above, shall
~ be as follows: ' _ |
17.3.1  Normative Annual Plant Availability Factor (Target Avai[ability): 85%

- 17.3.2 Normative Annual Plant Load Factor (NAPLF) for incentive: 85%
17.4 Gross Station Heat Rate |
(a) Coalbased Thermal Generating Stations
= 1.045 X Design Heat Rate (kCal / kWh)
Where the design heat rate of a Generating Unit means the Umt heat rate
guaranteed by the supplier at conditions of 100% MCR, zero percent make

up, design coal and design cooling water temperature/back pressure.
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- Provided that the design heat rate shall not exceed the following
maximum design unit _heat rates depending upon the pressure and

femp’erature ratings of the Units:

5300

MW 200 to >500 & <600] > 600

3 300 €500
“Pressure Rating (Kg/cm?) | 150 170 170 | 247
SHT/RHT (°C) 535/535 | 537/537 | 537/565 565/593

‘ ".Type of BFP Electrical| Turbine Tu;'bine _ “Turbine
' - Driven | Driven Driven | - Driven

Max Turbine Heat Rate - 1,955 | 1,950 1,935 1,850
(kCaUkVVh) S |
Min. BollerEfficiency _

- Sub- Bltumlnous Indian Coal 0.86 | 0.86 0.86 0.86
“Bituminous Imported Coal | 0.89 0.89 089 | 089
‘Max Design Unit Heat Rate (kCal/kWh)

~Sub-Bituminous Indian Coal| 2,273 | 2,267 | 2,250 2,151
“Bituminous Imported Coal | 2,197 | 2,191 5174 5,078

Provided further that in case pressure and temperature parameters of a

Unit are different from above ratings; the maximum design Unit heat rate of

the nearest class shall be taken:

~Provided also that where unit heat rate ha§ not been guaranteed but
‘turbine cycle heat rate and boiler efficiency are guaranteed separately by the
same supplier or different suppliers, the unit désign heat rate shall be arrived

at by using guaranteed turbine cycle heat rate and boiler efficiency.

Provided also that where the boiler efficiency is below 86%-for
Sub-bituminous Indian coal and 89% for bituminous imported coal, the same

- shall be considered as 86% and 89% respectively for Sub-bituminous Indian

~ coal and bituminous imported coal for computation of station heat rate.

7 [Part-11
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Provided also that maximum turbine cycle heat rate shall be adjusted
for type of dry cooling system ,
Provided also that for Generaﬁng_ Stations based on coal rejects, the
Commission will approve'the Design Heat Rate on case to case basis.
Note: In respect of Generatin'g Units where the boiler feed pumps are
electncal!y operated the maximum design unit heat rate shall be 40
- kCal / kWh lower than the maxrmurn des:gn unit heat rate specified
" above with turbine driven BFP.
(b) Gas-based / Liquidbased thermal Generating Unit(s)/ Block(s)
1.05 X Design Heat Rate of the unit/block for Natural Gas
and .
RLNG (kCal/kWh)
=1.071 X Design Heat Rate of the Unit/ Block for Liquid Fuel (kCal/kWh)
Where the Design Heat Rate of a Unit shall mean the guaranteed heat rate
for a Unit at 100% MCR and at site ambient conditions; and the Design
Heat Rate of a block shali mean the guaranfeed heat rate for a block at -
100% MCR, site ambient conditions, zero percent make up, design cooling
water temperatu re/back pressure
17.5  Secondary fuel oll consumptlon

Coal-based generating stations , ~ 0.50 mI/kWh

17.6  Auxiliary Energy Consumption
(a) Coal Based Generating Stations

; With natural draft cooling tower
; 2 = + | orwithout cooling tower
200 MW series - _ - 8.50%
300/330/350/500 MW and above series ' 5.25%
Steam driven boiler feed pumps ’
Electrically driven boiler feed pumps |  7.75%

Provided further that for thermal generating stations with induced -

draft cooling tewers, the norms shall be further inc'reased by 0.5%:
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Provrded also that Additional Aux:l;ary Energy Consumptlon as
follows may be allowed for plants with Dry Cooling Systems:

Type of Dry Cooling System | (%ofgross

- 5 : _ o | generation)
Direct cooling air cooled condensers with mechanical draft fans | 1%
Indirect cooling system employing jet condensers with pressure R D .
recovery turbme and natural draft tower ' .

(b) Gas Turbine / Combmed Cycle generatmg statrons
Comb:ned Cycie | 2.5%
Open Cyc!e a 1.0%

17.7  Transitand handling losses: "y | ,

' ‘Transit and handling losses for coal based'Generaiing Stations, as a
percentage of quantity of coal dispatched by the coal supply company during
the month shall be as given below:

17.7.1 Pit head Generat[ng Stations: 0. 20%, _
17 7.2 Non-pit head Generatmg Stations: 0.80%;
- Provided that in case of Pit Head stations if coal is procured from
. sources other than the Pit Head mines which is transported to the station
through rall transit loss of 0.80% shall be appilcable
~ Provided further that in case of imported coal, the transst and handlmg
. losses shall be 0.20%, subject to terms of delivery. . '
17.8 Incasea Thermal Generating Statlon or Unit is directed by SLDC to operate
below normative loading but at or above technical minimum schedule on
aecount of grid security or due to the lower schedule given by the
Beneﬁeiaries,'"ihcrease in Gross Station Heat Rate or penalties imposed by
Bureau 6f Energy Efficiency (BEE) for being non-compliant arised due to
-generation backing down/partial Ioadin.g.eperation. if any_ or any such charges
. | incurred by Generating Station or Unit on account of operational instructions.
issued by SLDC for grid security purpose, may be considered by the
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Commlssron on case to case basis at time of truing up, subject to prudence

checkr

18.  Norms of operation for hydro Generatin'g Stations v

18 1. Recovery of capacity charge, energy charge, and incentive by the Generating
Entity shall be based on the achievement of the operational norms specified by
the Commissmn ' , ' :

18.2_'. Normatlve capacrty index for recovery of annual Capacaty charges

First Year of . Aﬂer first Year of
commissioning of commlssronrng-of the|
the Generating Station| Generating Station |

'Pur‘ely Run-of-river power stations L -
: _ _ : 85% ' 90%

~ [Storage type' and Ru_'n-of~ river S S :
power'_stations With pondage . | . 80%. .. | 85%

;Note' There shall be pro rata recovery of annuai Capacrty Charges |n case the
' Generatmg Station achieves capacity index below the prescrlbed
normat;ve levels. At Zero capacity mdex no fixed charges shall be
- payable to the Generatlng Station.
18.3. Auxiliary Energy Consumption
(a) Surface . hydro-electnc power Generatlng Stations with rotatlng :
excaters mounted on the generator shaft -..0.2% of energy
" generated | | ! | - |
(b) Surface hydroelectnc power Generatlng Stetlons wrth statac_
excitation system - 0.5% of energy generated
(c) Underground hydroelectnc power Generatlng Stations w:th ,
otatlng excnters r_nounted on the generato_r shaft - 0.4% of energy |
| "generated T
(d) Underground hydroelectnc power generatmg stations with statrc
excitation system - 0.7% of energy generated
18.4. Transformation losses - . -
' From generation voltage to transmission vo!tage 0.5% of energy generated
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18.

Operatmg & maintenance expenses (O&M)

19.1. The O&M expenses for each year of the Control Period shall be approved

_ based on the formula shown below

O&Mn = (R&M + EMP,+ A&G,) x 99%

Where,

R&Mn - Repair and Maintenance Costs of the Applicant for the n year;
EMPn - Employee Cost of the Applicant for the n* year; |

A&Gn - Administrative and General Costs of the App!lcant for the nt Nyear;

The above components shall be computed in the manner specified in this

~ clause:

19.2.

Employee Cost (EMR)

Employee cost shall be computed as per the approved norm escalated by CPI,
adjusted by provisions for expenses beyond the control of the Generating Entity
and one time expected expenses, such as recdvery/adjus_tmeht of Terminal
Benéﬁts, implications of pay commission, arrears and interim relief, governed
by the following formula, :

EMP, = (EMR, X CPI inflation) + Provision

Where: ‘

EMP_I:I_: Employee expense for the Year “n”

EMPb: Efnployee expense as per the preceding Year..

“For the first year of Control Period, expense shaﬂ_be the average of the

trued-up employee expenses after adding/deducting the share of efficiency
gain‘s/iossés, for the immediately preceding Control Period, excluding
abnormal, if any, subject to Prudence Check by the Commission.

CPI inflation is the point to point change in the Consumer Price Index for

Industrial Workers (all India) as per Labour Bureau, Government of India, as

‘reduced by an efficiency factor of 1% for immediately preceding Year.

CPI index source for one-month lag: Ministry of Statistics - GOI provided that in
case CPl inflation is a negative number, the escalation/ éhange shall be 0%.
Provision refers to provision for expenses beyond control of the Generating
Entity and expected dné-time expenses as specified above.

[Part-11



February 1 ,2019] ' TELANGANA GAZETTE EXTRAORDINARY

65

19.3.

Repalrs and Maintenance Expens(R&M )
The expense shall be calculated as percentage (as per the norm defined) of
Opening Gross Fixed Assets for the Year governed by folldwing formula:

- R&M, = K, X GFA, X WPI inflation

Where:

- R&M,: Repairs & Maintenance expense for n" Year GFAn: Opening Gross

19.4:

G-714/9.

Fixed Assets for n" Year

Ka: 'K’ is the immediate preceding Control Period average (expressed in %)
governing the relationship between R&'.M and Gross Fixed Assets (GFA).
WPI inflation: point to point change in Wholesale Price Index (WPI) for

" immediately preceding Year.
Prowded that i in case WPl inflation is a negatlve number the escalatlon!

change shall be 0%. _
Source for WPI - As published by Office of Economic Adviser - GOl

‘Administrative & General Expense (A&G )

A&G expense shall be computed as per the norm escalated by the inflation
factor and adjusted by provisions for confirmed initiatives (IT etc. initiatives as
proposed by the Generating Enﬁty and validated by th’e Commission) or other

expected one-time expenses, and shall be governed by followmg formula:

- A&G;, = (A&Gfo * Inflation Factor) Provision

Where:
A&Gn: A&G expense for the Year n”
A&Gfo: For the first Year of the Control Perlod it shall be the average of the
audited A&G expense of the immediately preceding 3 Financial Years if
available, and for subsequent Years it shall be the preceding Year escalated by
the inflation factor. . ‘
Inflation Factor: is the sum of the following |
> point to point change in the Wholesale Price Indfax (WP numbers as
per Office of Economic Advisor of Government ‘of India for
immediately preceding Year as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1%
‘multiplied by 0.5 |
> point to point change in Consumer Price Index for Industrial Workers
(all India) as pef Labour Bureau, Government of India in the previous

year, as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1% multiplied by 0.5
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Provided that in case Inflation Factor is a negative number, the
| escalation/ change shall be 0%. .
Provision: Cost for initiatives or other one-time éxpenses as proposed by the

Generatlng Entlty and validated by the Commussmn

19.5. Normative Operatlon and Maintenance Expenses for the flrst Year of a new

Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and Conditions of Tariff)

Generating Entity shall be as per the norms approved by the CERC in Central -

Reg_ulations, 2014 as amended from time to time, for respective Year unless

~ specifically approved by the Commission.

19.6.

19.7.

19.8.

19.9.

19.10.

Any expenditure on account of license fee, initial dr renewal, fee for
determination of tariff and audit fee shall be allowed on actual basis, over and
above the A&G expenses approved by th.e Commission.

O&M expenses of assets taken on lease/hire-purchase and those created out
of the consumer’s contribution shall be considered in case the Generating
Entity has the_ responsibility for its operatibn and maintenance ‘and bears
O&M expenses. ' | |

With regard to unfunded past liabilities of pension and gratuity, the
Comrﬁission will follow the principle of “pay as you go”. The Commission shall
not allow any other amount towards creating fund for meeting unfunded past
liability of pension and gratuity. _

O&M expenses for gross fixed assets édd'ed during the Year, if not accounted
already, shall be considered from th.e COD on pro-rata basis.

The O&M expenses incurred by the Generating Entity on the housing

colonies and related expenses including medical and other facilities, of its - -

| operating staff shall be recorded separately and excluded from the above

1607

19.13.

actual O&M expenses are less than 90% of the normative expenses in
respect of New generating\stations :

Provided, if actual O&M expenses érel less than 90% of the normative
expenses, the Commission shall true-up the O&M expenses during the
lMid-TermReview or End of Control Period Review as the case'may be.
Terminal Liabilities such as death-cum-retirement gratuity, pension,
commuted pension, leave encashment, LTC, medical reimburéement
including fixed medical allowance in respect of pensioners will be approved

as per the actuals pa]d.'

%)
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19.13.

19.14.
- considered separately by the Commission.
19.15. | |

20,
20.1.

202,

O&M expenses made on account of extraordinary situations (if ariy) shall be

submitted to Commission for its approval. Such expenses shall be filed

separately and will not be subjected to provisions of this clause of the
Regulation. The approved amount by the Commission shall be trued up in the
Mid-Term Review and End of Control Period review, as applicable.

Any increase in employee cost on account of pay revision etc. will be

Prior pericd expenses

19.15.1.The Applicant shall submit to the Commission the prior period
expenses as a part of the filing for Mid-Term Review and End of
Control Period Review; [ :

19.15.2.The Commission shall allow prior period expenses for uncontrollable

cost items only as per the audited‘accounts, during such reviews.

Foreign Exchange Rate Variation
The Applicant may hedge forelgn exchange exposure m respect of the interest

on foreign currency loans and repayment of foreign loans acquired for the :

Generating Station in part or full at the discretion‘ of the Applicant.
The Applicant shall recover the cost of hedging of foreign exchange rate

~ variation corresponding to the normative foreign debt, in the relevant Year on

20.3.

20.4.

" Year-to-Year basis as expense in the period in which it arises and extra rupee

liability corresponding to such foreign exchange rate variation shall not be
allowed against the hedged foreign debt.
To the extent the Applicant is not able to hedge the foreign exchange

exposure, the extra rupee liability towards interest payment and loan .

repayment correspondlng to the normetlve forergn currency loan in the

relevant Year shall be permlssmle provided it is not attributable to the

Applicant or its contractors.
The Applicant shall recover the ccst of hedging and foreign exchange rate

variation on Year-to-Year basis as income or expense in the period in whlch it -

arises.
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' :21.

P01,

I 5 )

Computatlon & Payment of Capacity Charges & Energy Charges for

Thermal Generatlng Statlons ' ;
The fixed cost of a Thennal Generating Station shall be computed on annual
basis, based on norms specified under these Regulations, and récovered on

monthly basis under capacity charge. The total capacity charge payable' for a

 Generating Station shall be shared b_y‘ its Beneficiaries as per their fesp’éctive

percentage share / allocation in the capacity of the Genérarting Statién. :
The.capacity charge payéble’to‘ a Thermal G.e'nehrating _Statibn for a calendar
month shall be calculated in accordance with the following formulae |
CCA= (AFC/12)( PAF1 / NAPAF ) subject to cailing of (AFC/12)

CC2 ((AFC/G)( PAF2/ NAPAF ) subject to ceiling of (AFC/6)) - CC1

CC3= ((AFC/4)(PAF3/NAPAF)5ub;ect to ceiling of (AFC/4)) - (CC1 +CC2)
CC4 = ((AFC/3) (PAF4 /NAPAF) subject to ce:lrng of (AFC/S)) -

| (CC1+CC2+CC3)

'CC_S ((AFC x 5/1 2) (PAFSINAPAF) subject to ceslmg of (AFC X 5!12)) -
_ (CC1 +CCZ+CC3+CC4) :
CCG ((AFC/Z) (PAF6 / NAPAF) subject to celllng of (AFC/2)) -
- (cc +002+CC:5+CC4+CCS) : '
CC?‘" ((AFC x 7/12) (PAF?I NAPAF) subject to celhng of (AFC X 7/12)) -
| (CC1+CC2 +CC3 +CC4 + CC5 + CCh)

_CCB ((AFC X 2/3) (PAFB/ NAPAF) subject to celllng of (AFC X 2[3)) -

- (cc1+ce2. +CC3 +CC4 + CC5 + CC6 + CC7)

cco= ((AFC x 3/4) (PAF9 / NAPAF) subject to ceiling of (AFC X 3/4)) -

(CC1+CC2 +CCS +CC4 * CCS + CCG +CC7+CC8)
CC10= ((AFC X 5/6) (PAF1 o/ NAPAF) subject to ceiling of (AFC x 5/6))
(CC1+CC2 +CC3 +CC4 + CC5 + CC6 +CC7 + CC8 + CC9)

"CCH = ((AFiC x 11/12) (PAF1 1 /NAPAF) subject to ceiling of (AFC x 111 2))-

© (CC1+CC2+CC3 +CC4 + CC5 + CCB + CC7 + CC8 + CCY + CC10)
CC12 = ((AFC) (PAFy / NAPAF) subject to ceiling of (AFC)) - (CC1+CCZ + .
CC3+CC4 +CC5 + CCH+ CC? * CCS +CC9+CC10 + CC11) ‘

o) Prowded that in case of Generatmg Station under shutdown due to_' |
Renovati;ih and Modernisation, the Ge.nerating _Entity shall be allowed t_o'__ :
recoVer_the O&M expenses and interest on loan only. |
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Where .
AFC Annual fixed cost specified for the year, in Rupees
NAPAF. = Normatlve annual Plant Availability Factor in

percentage

PAF,, Percent Plant Avaltabltrty Factor achleved upto the end of the .

nt month )
PAFY = Percent Plant Avarlabrlrty Factor achieved during: the Year
CC1, £C2; CC3, CC4; CC5; CCS, CC7, CC8, CC9, CC10, Ce11,

andC#42 are the Capacity Charges of 1%, 2, 3™ 4t sth gth 7th

gth, gth. 10, 11“‘ and 12™months respsctively

69

The PAF, up to the end of a partlcu!ar month and PAFY shall be computed in o

accordance with the follow:ng formula:
‘ N ;
PAFnorPAFY— 10000xZDCrI{NxICx( 100 - AUX)}%
C = 1 :

< Where
AUX = Normatrve Auxr!rary Energy Consumptron in percentage

”DCI— Average Declared Capacity (|n ex-bus MW) for the it Day of the perlod

f e e. . the month or the year as the case may be as certrf' ed by the concemed i

o Ioad dispatch centre afterthe Day is over.

21.4.

i B R

" IC = Installed Capacrty (rn MW) of the Generatrng Statron
‘N= Number of Days during the period. _
Note: DCi and IC shall exclude the capacity of Generatrng Unrts not declareda.

under commercial operatlon In case of a change iniC dunng the concerned
penod its average value shall be taken

PLF Incentive to a Generatrng Station shall be payable at the rate specrﬁed in

CERC Regulations, 2014 as applicable durmg control period.

The energy charge shall cover the pnmary and secondary fuel cost and shall' ;

be payable by every Benef crary for the total energy scheduled to be supplied

to such Beneficiary during the calendar month on ex-power p[ant basrs atthe -

energy charge rate of the month with fuel and Irmestone price (wherever

applicable) adjustment Total Energy charge payable to the Generating Entity

foramonth shallbe: . | -
(Energy charge raz‘e in Rs./kWh) ¥ {Scﬁedu/ed energy (ex-bus) for the monf/r
in kWh.} '



70

TELANGANA GAZETTE EXTRAORDINARY

21.6. Energy charge rate (ECR) in Rupees per KkWh on ex-power plant basns shall

be determined to three dec:mal places in accordance with the following

formulae

21.6.1. For coal based stations _ _
' ECR ={(GSHR - SFC x CVSF) x LPPF / CVPF+SFC x LPSFi + LC
_ x LPL} x 100 /(100 - AUX) -
21.6.2. Forgas and liquid fuel based stations |
ECR = GSHR x LPPF x 100 / {CVPF x (100 -&UX)}
Where,
AUX =Normative Auxiliary Energy Consumptlon in percentage
CVPF= _

» Weighted Average Gross calorific Value of coal as received, in kCal per kg
for coal based stations - ~ _

. Weighted Average Gross calorific Value of primary' fuel as fired, in kCal
per kg, per litre or per stahdard cubic meter, as applicable for gas and
liquid fuel based stations. '

* In case of blendmg of fuel from different sources, the welghted average
Gross Calorific Value of pnmary fuel shall be arrlved in proportlon to'

blending ratio. s

- CVSF =Calorific value of secondary fuel in kCal per ml.

ECR = Energy charge rate, in Rupees per KWh sent out.
GSHR =Gross Station Heat Rate, in kCal per kWh.

LC = Normative limestone consumption i_n kg per KWh.

LPL = Weighted average landed price of limestone in Rupees per kg.
LPPF =Weighted averege Iand‘ed_priceof primary fuel, in Rupees per kg, per

litre or per standard cubic meter, as applicable, during the month. (In case of

blending of fuel from different sources, the weighted average landed price of

primary fuel shall be arrived in proportion to blending ratio)

SFC = Normative Specific fuel oil consumption, in ml per kWh.

LPSFi=Weighted Average Landed Price of Secondary Fuel in Rs. / ml during

the month. ' ' |
Provided that energy charge rate for a gas/liquid fuel based station

shall be adjusted for open cyble operation based on certification of TSSLDC

for the open cycle operation during the month.
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AT

The Generating Entity shall provide to the Beneficiaries of the Generati_ng _

Station the details of parameters of GCV and price of fuel i.-e.', do_mesti.c coal,

imported coal, e-auction coal, natural g'as RLNG, liquid fuel etc., as per the:

‘ .forms prescnbed at Annexure | of CERC Regulatlons

Provided that the details of blendmg ratio of the |mported coal wrth
domestic Coat proportaon of e-auction coal and the weighted average GCV of
the fuels as flred shall also be prowded separatety, along with the bills of the

respect;ve month

Provided further that the cop:es of the bills and deta!ls of parameters of -

GCV and price of fuel i.e. domestic coal,_lmported coal, e-auction coal, natural

. ~gas, RLNG, liquid fuel etc., details of blending ratio of the imported coal- with

21.8.

domestic coal, proportion of e- auction coal shall also be displayed on the‘ :

website of the Generating Entlty The detaﬂs shou!d be avallable on its
websrte on monthly basis for a period of three months '
The landed cost of fuel for the month shall include price of fuel co‘rreSponding

to the grade and quality of fuel inclusive of royalty, taxes. and duties as

: appllcable transportatlon cost by rail / road or any other means (all these

. Central Electricity Regulatory-CommissiOn, for reSpect'ive Year unless

21.9.

: parameters to be-shown separate]y), _and, for the purpose of computatlon of

energy charge, and in case .of coal shall be arrived at after considering

normative transit and handling losses as percentage of the quanmy of coal

dispatched by the coal supp!y company during the month as notified by the.

specmcally approved by the Commission;

Provided that any refund of taxes and duties along W|th any amount -
' recelved on account of penaltles from fuel suppller shall be adjusted in the fuel -
_cost e : _ '
In case of part or full use of alt’ernatiyesource of fuel supply by coal based

Therma[ Generatmg Statlons other than as agreed by the Generatlng Entlty

" and Benef ciaries in their power purchase agreement for supply of contracted

power on ‘account of shortage of fuel or optimization of economical operation

E through blending, the use of alternative source of “fuel supp!y shall ‘be
A permntted to Generating Station.
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_ Provided that in such case, prior permission from Beneficiaries shall
not be a precondition, unless otherwise agreed specifically in the power
purchase agreement; I - .

Provided further that the weighted average price of use of alternative
~source df rfue! shall not exceed 30% of base price of fuel, hoWever'the
Commission will make a prudent check in a'ppfoving the price of alternative
fuel, considering the improved GCV and impact of energy rate on account of
increased pricé of alternative source of fuel Pfovidéd also that where the
energy charge rate based oh weighted average price of use of fuel including
alternative source of fuel exceeds 30% of base energy charge rate as

‘approved by the Commission for that year or energy charge rate based on

| weighted average price of use of fuel including alternative sources of fuel

exceeds 20% of energy charge rate based on weighted average fuel price for
the previous month, whichever is lower shall be considered and in that event,
prior consultation with Beneficiary shall be made not later than three Days in
advance " |

21. 10.1 Any variation in fuel prices on ac';count‘of change in the Gross Calorific Value

- (GCV) of coal or gas or quuidifue'l shall be adjusted on a monthly basis on the
basis of average GCV of coal or gas or liquid fuel in stock, as fired and

- weighted average landed cost . incurred by the Generating Entity for

procurement of coal, oil, or gas or liquid fuel, as the case may be for a

Station.

21'. 11. The Generating Entity shall separately indicate rate of energy charges inits

22,

bills at base price of primary and secondary fuel specified by the

Commission.

- Computation & Payment of Capacity Charges & Energy Charges for

Hydro Generating Stations

22.1. The fixed cost of a hydro Generating Station shall be computed on annual

basis, based on norms specified under these Regulations, and shall be
recovered one twelfth of Annual ﬁxed charges on evefy' month which shall be
payable by the Beneficiaries in proportion to their respective allocation in the
saleable capacity of the Generating Station. '
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Provrded that during the period between COD of the first umt of the

: Generatlng S*tatlon and the COD of the Generatlng Station, the annual fixed
cost shall prowsmnally be worked out _based on the latest estimate of the
completion cost for the Gelnerating Station, for the purpose of'defermining the

~ capacity charge an_d energy charge payment during ‘such’period.

02.2. The capacity charge payable to a hydro Generating Station for a calendar
| yearshallbe Cao2 AT ' e »
| Annual Capacny Charges = (Annual Fixed Charge Primary Energy Charge)

Provided that the Primary Energy Charge shall not exceed the Annual
Fixed Charge and there shall !_:Je_pro rata recovery of an_nuai capacity c_harges__

i in.case the Generat'ing Station achieve’s Capacity index below the prescribed
normative levels. At Zero capacity index, no capacity charges shal! be
payable to the Generatmg Station. ' '

22.3. Hydel statlonsEnergy Charges _

" 1. Rate of przmary energy for all hydro electric power generatlng statrons except for
pumped storage generatlng stations, shall be equal to average of the lowest
‘variable charges of the Central and Staté therngal pow_er_generatlng stations of

the State for aill months of the previous year. The primary-energy charge shall be
computed based on the primary energy rate and scheduled primary energy of the
station: | _ P 7 ; - ; ' i

Provided that in case the primary energy .charge recoverable by applying

the above gr-i'mary energy rate exceeds the Annual _ﬁx.ed charges of a gene'rating :

~ station, the primary energy rate of such generating station shall be_oalculated by' -
the following formula : - ' - :

Prrmary energy rate = Annual fixed charge / Prlmary Energy _

2. Primary Energy Charge.E Scheduled Primary Energy X Prlmary Energy Rate
Secondary Energy Rate shall be. equal to the Primary Energy Rate.
Secondary Energy Charge Scheduled Secondary Energy X Secondary :
Energy Rate )

Note:
i. Annual frxed charges shall be adjusted at the end of the fmancnal year

i, Deciared capauty_of Hydel stations based on the mstruc’uons of SLDC

* subjected to the water availability constraints.

G-714/10.
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23.

231

232

Computatlon & Payment of Capacity Charges & Energy Charges for

.Pumped Hydro Generating Stations
The fixed cost of a Pumped Storage Hydro Generatlng Station shall be
computed on annual basis, based.on norms specified under these regulatlons,
and reco'ver_ed on monthly basis as capacity chargé. The capacity charge shall
be payable by the Beneficiaries in proportion to their respective al[oeatien in
the saleable capacrty of the Generatmg Station. '

Provided that during the period between COD of the flrst Umt of
the Genératmg Station and the COD of the Generating Station, the annual

- fixed cost shall be worked out based on the latest estimate of the completion

cost for the Generating Station,_fer the purpose of determining the eapacity

charge payment during such period

The capacity charge payable to a Pumped Storage Hydro Generating Station

for a calendar month shall be:

‘If actual Generation during the month is >= 75 % ef the 'Pumping Energy

consumed by the Station during the month (AFC x NDM / NDY) (in Rupees)

If actual Generation during the month is < 75 % of the Pumping Energy

consumed by the Station during the month. |
{(AFC x NDM / NDY) x (Actual Generation during the month during peak
hours!'75%_of the Pumping Energy consumed by the station during the
month) (in Rupees)} '

Where, ' ‘

AFC = Annual fixed cost specified for the year, in Rupees

NDM = Number of Days in the month IR

NDY = Number of Days in the year

Provided that there would be adjustment at the end of the year based on:

actual generation and actual pumping energy consumed by the Station during

the Year. 7
ProVided further that, the above norms shall be applicable to the

dedicated Pumped Storage Hydro Generating Station only.

23, 3 The energy charge shall be payable by every Beneficiary for the total energy

scheduled to be supplled to the Beneficiary in excess of the DeS|gn Energy.
plus 75%_of the energy utilised in pumping the water from the lower elevation

reservoir to the higher elevation reservoir, at a flat rate equal to the average
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energy charge rate of 20 paise per kWh, excluding free energy, n‘ any, durlng
the calendar month on ex power plant basis. '

Energy charge payab!e to the Generating Entity for a month shall be = 0.20 x
{Scheduled energy (ex-bus) for the month in kW.h -_(Desrgn Energy for the

month (DEm) +75% of the energy utiliZed in p'umping the water from the lower

| elevataon reservo;r to the higher elevation reservow of the month)}

B - Where,

. 235

- DEn = De3|gn energy for the month specrfled for the hydro Generatmg
Station in MWh '

Prowded thati ln case the schedu[ed energy in a month i is Iess than the'
Design Energy for t_he month p!us,_75% of the energy utilized in pumping the -
'water from the lower elevati'on reservoir to the higher elevation-reservoir of
the month, then the energy charges payable by the Benet" iciaries shall be )

zero.

‘The Generatlng Entlty shall malntain the fecord of daily mﬂows of naturai water

- into the upper- elevatton reservoir and the reservorr levels of upper elevation

reservonr and iower elevatzon reservour on hourly basis. The Statlon shall be

requlred to maXJmize the peak hour supplles with the available water mciudmg )
“the natural ﬂow of water. In case it is estaph_sh_ed that _Generatlng Entity is .

- deliberately or otherwise without any valid‘reason i$ not pumping wate'r from

lower elevation reservow to the hlgher elevat!on dunng off-peak penod or not -

generating power to its potential or wasting natural flow of water, the capacity

charges of the Day shall not be payable by the Benefi c_aary.-For this _purpose,

outages of the Unit(s)/Station including piann_e‘d outages and the forced‘

outages up to 15% in a year shall be construed as the valid reason for not 7

pumping water from lower elevation reservoir to the higher elevation '-duri'ng

off-peak period or not generatlng power using energy of pumped water or

natural ﬂow of water: ;
Provided that the total ca_pacity ch_arges recovered during the Year

‘shall be adjusted .on pro-rata basis in the following manner in the event of

total machine outages in a Year exceeds 15%:
- (ACC) adj = (ACC) R x (100- ATO)/85
Where, : o :
(ACC) adJ - Adjusted Annual Capacuty Charges (ACC) r - Annual
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Capacity Charges recovered
ATO - Tota] Outages in percenta‘ge for the year including forced and planned
outages ' :

Provided further that the Generatlng Statlon shall be required to
declare its machine availability daily on Day-ahead basis for all the Time
Blocks of the Day in line Wlth the scheduling procedure of Grid Code;

The concerned Load Dispatch Centre shall finalise the schedules for the hydro

- Generating Stations, in consultation with the Beneficiaries, for optimal

24,

utilization of all the energy d*eclared to be available, which shall be scheduled

for all Beneficiaries in proportion to their respective allocations in the

Generating Station.

‘Deviation Charges

' Vanatlons between actual m;eotlon of Energy and scheduled injection of Energy

for the Generatmg Stations, and varlatqons between actual drawl of Energy.and

scheduled drawl of Energy for the Beneficiaries shall be treated as their

respective deviations and charges for such deviations shall be governed by the

25,
25.1

dewat:on 'settlement mechanism regulatlons as notified by the Commiission.

Schedu!mg, Accountmg and Billing

Scheduling:

The methodology for scheduling and dispatch for the Generating Statlon shall
be as specified in the Grid Code and TSERC's Regulations for Deviation

Settlement Mechanism as and when notified by the Commission.

25.2 Metering and Accounting:

The provisions of the Grid Code and TSERC’s Regulations for Deviation
Settlement Mechanism as and when notified by the Commission shall be

applicable.

25.3 Billing and Payment of charges:

25.3.1 Bills shall be raised for capacity charge, energy charge on monthly basis-

by the Generating Entity in accordance with these Regulations, and

payments shall be made by the Beneficiaries.

-

25.3.1 Payment of the capacity charge for a Thermal Generating Station shall

be shared by the Beneficiaries of the Generating Station as per their

percentage shares for the month (inclusive of any allocation out of the
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25. 4 Note 1: Shares / allocations of each Beneﬂcrary in the total capacity of Central :

255

unallocated _capacity) in the ln‘s_talled CapaCity of the Generati.ng-Station.

Payment of capacity .charge and energy charge for a hydro Generatlng

' Station shall be shared by the Beneficiaries of the Generating Station in

proportion to their shares (mclusrve of any allocatron out of the

unallocated capacity) in the saleable capacny

- sector Generating Statioris shall be as determined by the Central Government
inclusive of any allocation made out of the unallocated capac:ty The shares
shall be appl!ed in percentages of lnstalled Capacuty and shall normally remain

constant dunng amonth. Based on the decision of the uentral Government the

- changes in allocation shall be communlcated by the Member-Secretary,

Regional Power Committee in advance at least three Days prior to begmnlng

- of a calendar month, except in case of an emergency callmg for an urgent
) 'change in allocations out of unallocated capacity. The total capacﬁy share of a

Beneficiary would be sum of its capac:ty share plus allocation out of the
unallocated portlon In the absence of any specn‘"lc allocatlon of unallooated

‘power by the Central. Government the unallocated power shall be added to _

the allocated shares in the same proportlon as the allocated shares

Note 2:The Benef cnarles may propose surrendering part of the:r allocated f irm

share to other States w1thm / outsrde the reglon In such cases dependlng upon
the techmcal feasrbrhty of power transfer and specifi c agreements reachecl by
the Generatmg Entity with other States within/ outside the region for such
transfers, the shares of the beneficiaries may be. prospectivel'y re-allocated by
the Central. Government for a Spectftc period (in complete months) from the

| beginning of a calendar month When such re- allocatlons are. made, the
Beneficiaries who surrender the share shall not be liable to p_ay capacity .
charges for the surrendered share. The capacity charges for the capacity ‘

surrendered and reallocated as above shall be pajd by the State(s) to whom the
surrendered capacity is allocated. Except for the period of reallocation of

~capacity as above, the Beneficiaries of the Generating Station shall contmue to

‘pay the full capacity charges as per allocated capacity shares: Any such
‘reallocation and its reversion. shall be communrcated to all concerned by the
- Member Secretary, Regtonal Power Committee in advance, at Ieast three Days

~ prior to such reallocation or reversron taking effect.
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26.2

26:3

26. Miscellaneous
26.1 Dispﬁte resolving mechanism

In the event of any dispute regarding interpretation of any provision of the
Terms and Conditions of Generation' Tariff Regulations or rules and
procedures notified under the provisions of the Terms and Conditions of
Generation Tariif Regulations, the rhatte’r will be decided by the Commission
according- to the Act. :

Provided that for this pufpose the aggrieved person shall be entitled to
file a proper petition before the Commission by following the Conduct of

Business Regulation, 2015 being regulation No. 2 of 2015 and Levy of Fee for

Rendering Services Rendered by the Commission Regulation, 2016 being\

regulation No. 2 of 20186,
: Provuded that the Commission may initiate such suo moto
proc:eedmgs as may be necessary in the event of it having come to the

conclusion based on reports of the TSGENCO that action needs to be taken

against any of the stakeholders in terms of the Act, 2003 by exerCIsmg the

powers vested in it thereof and by invoking the Conduct of Business Regulatlon
2015 being regulation No. 2 of 2015 and Levy of Fees for Rendenng Serv:ces
Rendered by the Commission Regulation, 2016 being regulation No. 2 of 2016,
where such fee if required to be levied is to be decided at the end of the
proceedihg as to who shall pay the same. .
Issue of orders and practice directions _
Subject to the provisions of the Act and this Regulation, the Commission may,
from time to time, issue orders and practi.ce directions in regard to the
implementation of these Regulations and proc;edure to be followed on variOus
matters, which the Commission has been empowered by these Regulations to
direct, and matters inciden-tai or ancillary thereto.
Powers to remove difficulties |
If any difficulty arises in giving effect to the provisions nis regulations, the
_ Commission may, by general or specific order, make such provisions not
inconsistent with the provisions of the Act, 2003, as may appear to it to be
necessary and expedieni for removing such difficulty duly following the
' procedure contempleted under the Act, 2003 and regulations in vogue.
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264 Power of re!axailen : . ,
The Commission may in public interest and for reasons to be recorded in
writing, relax any of the prowsson of these Regulatlons ‘ IRy

26.5 Interpretation ' ' ’
I a questlon arises relating to the mterpretation of any provision of these
Regulations, the decision of the Commission shall be fmal

_-26.6 Saving of inherent powers of the Commissmn '

1 Anythlng done or any action taken or purpo_rted to have been done or * taken
including any fu!e, notification, inspection, 'order“o.r .-nOtice made or iesued or
any appointment, confirmation or ‘declaration’ made or any licence,
permiseion, authorization or exemption " granted or any document or
instrument executed or any—-'direction given 'under -\the repealed' regulation
shal[ insofar-as it is not mcon3|stent with the. prowsnons of this regula‘uon be

- deemed to have been done or taken under the correspond:ng prowswns of

| this regulat:on shall be deemed to be not mvalld by virtue of such repeal.

2. Nothing contained in ‘these Regulations shall imit or otherwise affect the
Ainh‘erent"powers of the Commission from adopting a procedure, which' is at
variance with any of the prov:smns of these Regulatlons if the Commlssnon in

; view of the special mrcumstances of the matter or class of matters and for

' reasons to be recorded in -wrmng, deems 1t necessary or expedlent to depart
from the procedure spemﬂed in these Regulatlons | o

26.7 Enquiry and investigation o _
All enquiries, mvestlgatlons and adjudications unde‘r. theee regulations shall
be done by the Commissien through the pr'oceedings in accordance with the
provusmns of the Conduct of Busmess Regulations, 2015

26 8 Power to amend ‘

: The Comm153|on may, at any tnme vary, alter, modlfy or amend any provisions of thlS

regulation.
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' 27.  Summary of timelines

Description - |Filing of the Documen| Obtaining Approval of

- T s (on orbefore) additional - |the Document

: - | information and
acceptance by |

the Commission

| Capital Investment | st April of the Year . | Within 45 Days | Within 90

Plan : preceding the first Year | of filing of | Days of
-(to be filed only at the | of Control Period document acceptance of |
beginning of the _ ' e | the filing
Control Period) | ' ' ‘ o
Business Plan - 1st April of the Year | Within 45 Days | Within 90
preceding the first Year | of fiingof - | Days of
of Control Period document acceptance of
' . | - the filing -
Filing of MYT Petition | 1st April 2019 - Within 45 Days | Within 120
| (ARR and Tariff - U of filing of . .| Days of
Proposal for the R document acceptance of |
Control Period) - | : ) - | the filing
Mid-Term Review 30th November of the | Within 45 Days | Within 120
- . fourth Year of the - | of filing of . Days of
Control Period - | document | acceptance of
_ o : S o - the filing
End of Control Period | 30th November of the | Within 45 Days | Within 120
Review - < first Year of the - of filingof =~ |[Daysof =~
subsequent Control - | document acceptance of
Period o | the filing
(BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION)
‘ UMAKANTA PANDA, .
" Commission Secretary (FAC),
Telangana State Electricity
' Regulatory Commission, -
Hyderabad. "
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